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About the Investor and Financial Education Council

Established in 2012 and supported by the four financial
regulators and the Education Bureau, the Investor and
Financial Education Council (IFEC) is a public organisation
dedicated to improving financial literacy in Hong Kong.
The IFEC promotes and delivers free and impartial
financial education resources and programmes through
its consumer education platform, The Chin Family,

and leads the Financial Literacy Strategy to create a
conducive environment for stakeholders to deliver more
quality financial education to various segments of the
Hong Kong population.
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Financial education is like tending a garden —
the sooner you develop knowledge and skills,
the more rewards you will harvest.
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Message from the Chairman

FERIE

The past year has undoubtedly
been one of the most
challenging periods in

Hong Kong's recent history.

Starting with the social
occurrences in June 2019, then
followed by the outbreak of the
COVID-19 epidemic in early 2020,
Hong Kong has suffered
tremendously from their impact
on our economy and people's
lives. These challenges, coupled
with the uncertainties
surrounding the Sino-US trade
situation, have brought Hong
Kong's economy into recession
and caused thousands of
business losses and significant
job layoffs.

Our troubled economy also
highlights the continuing
importance, and indeed the
urgency, of financial education
for Hong Kong people.
Through financial literacy, we
can acquire the capabilities,
confidence and resilience to
make sound financial
decisions for ourselves and our
families, and to pull through
hard times. This is why the
IFEC is more committed than
ever to accelerating financial
literacy in Hong Kong.

Market overview

In 2019, the Hong Kong
economy went into recession
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for the first time in a decade,
mainly due to the protracted
Sino-US trade conflict and social
occurrences. In early 2020, the
COVID-19 outbreak put a further
dent on the economy.

A precipitous drop in visitor arrivals
and consumer sentiment forced
many businesses to downsize or
close, particularly those in the
hospitality and retail sectors.
Subsequently, the unemployment
rate rose to 4.2% for the period
between January and March 2020 -
the highest increase in more than
nine years.

With the rise in the unemployment
rate, many in the workforce faced



the possibility of seeing their
incomes drop, which led to
growing concerns about overall
household debt and people’s
financial well-being. The
household debt-to-GDP ratio
increased to 80.4% in the final
quarter of 2019 from 71.9% in the
same quarter of 2018.

Throughout the review period,
the financial market remained
highly volatile, with the Hang
Seng index weakening
considerably.

Investment pitfalls in
Hong Kong

In an unstable financial market,
investors tend to seek bargains
among undervalued stocks. Yet
many do so with the aim of
achieving fast short-term profits,
based on the advice of friends
and relatives, rather than their
own in-depth research based on
primary sources.

This was borne out in our Retail
Investor Study 2019, which
showed that investors, especially
those aged 18 to 29, frequently
did not understand the financial
products in which they were

investing or the market situation.

This younger segment was also
more likely to be interested in
cryptocurrency products,
without fully comprehending
the risks involved.

In response, we urged retail
investors to be more diligent.
We also developed a Core

Competencies Framework on
Financial Literacy for Investors,
covering basic investment
principles and concepts.

Continued focus on
youth education

During the year, we continued
to focus on financial education
programmes for the younger
generation, as we believe it is
never too early for children and
young adults to learn the basics
of money management and to
develop sound habits and a
healthy attitude towards
managing their money. As the
theme of this report highlights,
financial education is like
tending a garden - the sooner
you develop knowledge and
skills, the more rewards you will
harvest.

Initiatives by the IFEC in
2019-2020 included school
programmes, interactive games,
workshops for parents, our
financial literacy ambassadors,
and the provision of financial
education resources for schools
and our NGO partners in the
community.

The IFEC also supported the
Government's efforts to promote
STEM education, particularly the
mathematical skills required to
manage money effectively, by
developing a set of Money
Mathematics teaching resources
on money management topics
for junior secondary
schoolteachers. To familiarise

teachers with these resources,
we organised workshops in
collaboration with the
Education Bureau.

Support for the public
annuity plan

In its 2020-21 Budget Speech,
the Government announced
that it would lower the minimum
entry age (from 65 to 60) for

the HKMC Annuity Plan. This
enhancement will help more
senior citizens with their
retirement planning by
transforming their assets into a
lifetime income stream.

During the year, the IFEC continued
to provide education on the need
for people to make provisions for
their retirement. To that end, we
launched a sitelet introducing
ways to create lifelong retirement
incomes with various financial
tools and products.

The IFEC also worked with the
Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau to raise awareness of two
newly-introduced tax deductible
retirement tools, including the
qualifying deferred annuity
premiums and tax deductible
MPF voluntary contributions.

Financial Education
Champion Award 2020

Our Financial Education
Champion Award, which ran for
a second year in 2020, recognises
organisations for their efforts to
improve the financial well-being
of the public in Hong Kong.

RAENEMHEEREE2019-20FK



Message from the Chairman

EFEHEE

In 2020, the number of
award-winning institutions
increased to 42 from 34 the
previous year, and 6 were
honoured for their outstanding
contributions towards improving
the quality of financial education.
We hope that with this award
programme, more organisations
will be inspired to advocate
financial education in line with
our Financial Literacy Strategy.

The year ahead

Looking ahead, | believe that
the Sino-US trade conflict, the
domestic social occurrences and
COVID-19 outbreak will continue
to have an impact on Hong
Kong's economic performance
in 2020.

Nevertheless, | remain confident
in Hong Kong’'s medium- to
long-term prospects. Hong Kong
has confronted and overcome
severe challenges in the past,
such as the financial crisis of
2008 and the SARS epidemic

in 2003, and bounced back
stronger and more resilient

than ever. Our cumulative
strength as a community is built
on the individual strengths of our
people, and by recognising this
we can work together to achieve
financial well-being.

| would like to thank the
members of the IFEC Board,
Advisory Groups and all of our
stakeholders for their advice
and support over the past year.
Special thanks go to our retired
members, Mr Darryl Chan,

Mr Cheng Yan Chee and

Ms Winnie Wong, for their
valuable contributions.

In closing, | would like to
express my utmost appreciation
to our General Manager,

David Kneebone, who after
almost six years in Hong Kong
returned to his native New
Zealand in March. All of us at
the IFEC thank him for his
valuable contributions to our
mission of financial education
and wish him all the best in his
future endeavours.

I look forward to working with
his successor as well as the
members of the Board and staff
of the IFEC in the year ahead.

W

Lester Huang
SBS, JP

Chairman
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Message from the General Manager

HRARIRRYEE

| was pleased to see recent
research that indicated the
financial literacy of the Hong
Kong population is generally
improving, especially after such
a tumultuous year.

IFEC's Financial Literacy Monitor
(released March 2020) shows

a notable increase in both
knowledge and attitude towards
money amongst Hong Kong
adults. Shifting attitudes on
some key measures is the

result of great effort by many
stakeholders, and everyone
associated with this effort should
feel proud.

The amount of work still required
to ensure children in Hong Kong
are financially literate is
considerable, and we don't

have a baseline measure of their
financial literacy. Going forward,
these key issues must be
addressed before real
generational progress is seen

in Hong Kong.

Together, we made a
difference

Other sectors are utilising
financial education offers from
IFEC and other parties at an
increasing rate. Working adults,
and the elderly especially, have
used online and face-to-face
offers in very large numbers in
the past year. Disruption
generally has meant tertiary
students have been less likely to
engage but we are now
beginning to see signs that
students desire to consider their

future in a different context.
IFEC needs to ensure it has an
adequate and appealing tertiary
financial education offer for
students when they are ready.

Of the many milestones
achieved in the past 12 months,
the one | am most pleased to
see flourish is the Financial
Education Champion Award,
now only in its second year.
More stakeholders applied for
the award, and the quality of
applications increased
significantly following year one.
Ensuring programmes are
evaluated adequately and the
results published for all parties
to learn from will remain a key
measure of success for Financial
Education Championsin

Hong Kong.
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A magnificent six years

Thanks to all the people and
organisations who have
supported me since June 2014
when | arrived in Hong Kong.
It has been a magnificent six
years, and | am very happy to
hand over the management of
IFEC while it's in such a good
state and, more importantly,
while financial literacy continues
to increase with room to

grow further.

| am writing this from
New Zealand, which | am very
fortunate to call home.

| hope everyone reading this has
a happy and prosperous future
and that the IFEC Board, staff
and all contributing stakeholders
continue to work together on
behalf of, and for, the Hong Kong
population.

{haskore

David Kneebone
General Manager
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Board of Directors

EER

Established in 2012 and supported by the four financial regulators
and the Education Bureau, the IFEC is an organisation dedicated to
improving financial literacy in Hong Kong.

The IFEC was formerly known as the Investor Education Centre (IEC).
The renaming, which took effect on 17 January 2019, reflects the
commitment of the Council to provide comprehensive education
on a wide range of money matters and to help and empower the
people of Hong Kong in making informed financial decisions.
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BEZERBREEREPL0 > K2019F1A17HENETE - UEERER

HiREEENEMEET > EWEETRELERBENMBRE -

Background 5

Financial literacy is a core life skill. In a world characterised

by rapid socio-economic change, digitalisation and the
introduction of increasingly complex financial products
and services, the need for financial education has never
been greater.

The IFEC is meeting this need through its role in
providing financial education to the people of Hong
Kong. Following a public consultation by the HKSAR
Government in February 2010, the Securities and
Futures Ordinance was amended in May 2012, paving
the way for the establishment of the IFEC (formerly
known as |IEC) in November 2012 as a subsidiary of the
Securities and Futures Commission (SFC). The IFEC is
supported by Hong Kong's four financial regulators and
the Education Bureau.
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Work I {E

We believe that financial education should be inclusive,
widely accessible and easy to understand. Our resources
and programmes are designed to help improve the
financial skills and knowledge of the public, and also
support the development of more responsible financial
habits, behaviours and decision making.

In April 2016, we launched The Chin Family platform
to provide people in Hong Kong with a trusted
source of comprehensive, credible and impartial
financial information, tools and resources. We also
organise free public seminars and various events that
address the specific financial education needs of our
target audiences.

Our work includes the following:

- Mass media campaigns to raise awareness of the
importance of financial education;

- Tailored education programmes and seminars that
address the needs of target groups;

- Financial education tools, services and support for
parents, social workers and teachers; and

- Collaboration with stakeholders and community
partners to extend the reach of our work.

The IFEC has developed the Financial Literacy Strategy,
which aims to create a conducive environment for
stakeholders to deliver more quality financial education
to various segments of the Hong Kong population.
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The IFEC is a public organisation
whose mission is to equip the
public with the knowledge,
attitudes and skills required

to make informed financial
decisions and manage

money wisely.

Partners S {EB#

We work in partnership with government
agencies and the finance, education and
community sectors to give the general
public the knowledge and tools they
need to make informed and sound
financial decisions.
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Board of Directors

BEER

Governance

To oversee the work of the IFEC, an independent Board of Directors has
been set up. The Board comprises a Chairman, who is a non-executive
director of the SFC, and representatives from the four financial regulators —
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, the Insurance Authority, the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and the SFC. Also sitting on
the Board are representatives from the education and finance sectors, as
well as the General Manager of the IFEC. The Board meets every three
months to provide strategic oversight and advice to the IFEC and approves
its policies and decisions.

Organisational structure

RS

Office
Management
MAEERE

Financial Education
Coordination Committee
BB EREZEY

Board of Directors
BERH

Advisory Groups
sH /v

Financial Education for Schoolchildren

ﬂaﬂ
General Manager BEEMHE

EEE LS

Financial Education for Tertiary Students
AEREEIRHE

Financial Education for Working Adults

Communications
and Resources

EARBEER

ERALERHE

Marketing and Research and Flnanma! Education for Retirees
Programmes Evaluation BHRALEHRBE
HEHEIRGE R R T

Research Grant Committee
MEEHEES
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Board of Directors EE5

HUANG, Lester sss, ip
BE4l sas, P
Chairman,

REENEMBEZEEERE

Investor and Financial Education Council

From 20 October 2018
Current appointment expires
on 14 November 2021
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Mr Huang is a Co-Chairman of PC Woo & Co. He is a
Non-Executive Director of the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC). Mr Huang started his career as a solicitor

in 1985 and was admitted as a partner of PC Woo & Co in 1991.
He is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr
Huang's public roles include serving as the Council Chairman
of the City University of Hong Kong, Chairman of the Standing
Committee on Language Education and Research and
Chairman of the Social Welfare Advisory Commmittee. He is an
ex-officio member of the Education Commission. Previously,
Mr Huang was President of The Law Society of Hong Kong and
a Non-Executive Director of the Urban Renewal Authority.

He was also a member of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s
Exchange Fund Advisory Committee and the Standing
Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service.

Mr Huang is Deputy Chairman of the SFC's Remuneration
Committee and Budget Committee. He also sits on the SFC
(HKEC Listing) Appeals Committee.
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Board of Directors
BERB

David KNEEBONE
FiEmE

-
b General Manager,

ol

Mr Kneebone has specialised in financial education for

14 years in New Zealand, Australia and Hong Kong. He is
currently General Manager and a Board member of the Hong
Kong's Investor and Financial Education Council. Earlier in his
career, Mr Kneebone led various communications agencies in
New Zealand and Australia and held marketing manager
positions in the telecommunications and banking sectors.

REENEMBBEEEGRICE

Mr Kneebone has managed a variety of successful financial
education programmes in communities, workplaces, schools,
tertiary institutions and online.

Mr Kneebone is actively involved in sharing his experiences
and insights on financial education and retirement income
issues. He is a regular conference speaker and member of
various OECD and IOSCO committees focused on developing
financial literacy initiatives and producing quality research.

Note: Mr David Kneebone served as General Manager until
31 March 2020. He will continue in his role as Board member
until 18 October 2020.

B FRERERERKEE2020F3831H - MBELEESREMEE
2020410R18H °
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AUYEUNG Pak Kuen, Rex i
ERFZ{EHE 5p

Industry representative

ERRE

Mr Auyeung joined the Board of MTR Corporation Limited as
a Non-executive Director on 7 March 2019 and has become the
Non-executive Chairman since 1July 2019.

Mr Auyeung is an independent non-executive director of
HSBC Provident Fund Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited and China
Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited.

Mr Auyeung has over 40 years of experience in the insurance
industry in Canada and Hong Kong. Before his retirement in
June 2017, Mr Auyeung was Chairman — Asia of the Principal
Financial Group Inc. (PFG), a Fortune 500 company,
responsible for PFC’s overall businesses in Asia. During his
time with PFG, Mr Auyeung represented PFG and its member
companies across Asia in building and expanding PFG's
relationship with clients, joint venture partners and strategic
investors, and assisting in business development across all
product lines of PFG. Mr Auyeung also actively serves the
public sector and is currently an observer of the Independent
Police Complaints Council Observers Scheme, and a member
of the Board of Directors of the Investor and Financial
Education Council under the Securities and Futures
Commission. In addition, he is a member of the Investment
Sub-committee of The Commmunity Chest of Hong Kong, a
board member of Bo Charity Foundation (Food Angel) and a
convenor of the Jockey Club Community eHealth Care Project.

Mr Auyeung was previously an independent non-executive
director of Standard Life (Asia) Limited and Sompo Insurance
China Co,, Ltd,, the chairman of the Hong Kong Strategy for
Financial Literacy Sub-committee on Stakeholder
Coordination and Collaboration, a member of the Independent
Review Committee on Hong Kong's Franchised Bus Service,

the chairman of the Council of Lingnan University and the Senior
Strategy and Business Advisor at Athenex Inc., a company listed
on the NASDAQ in the United States of America.

Mr Auyeung holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies (Urban
and Regional Planning) Honours Degree from the University
of Waterloo, Canada and was awarded an Honorary Fellowship
by the City University of Hong Kong in 2013. He was appointed
a Justice of the Peace in 2018.

From 19 October 2018
Current appointment expires
on 18 October 2021
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Board of Directors
BERB

RZEIE s,
Insurance Authority
RBEEER

Mr Cheung has been the Chief Executive Officer of the
Insurance Authority since 15 August 2018. He joined the
Administrative Service in 1983 and was involved in the
formulation and implementation of various government
policies. Key positions held by Mr Cheung have included
Director of the Hong Kong Economic and Trade Office in
Singapore from 1998 to 2001, taking charge of ASEAN affairs
and coping with the impact of the Asian Financial Crisis;
Commissioner of Insurance from 2006 to 2009, responsible for
prudential regulation of authorized insurers during the global
financial crisis; Postmaster General from 2009 to 2011, making
notable achievements in corporate structuring and business
development; Commissioner of Customs and Excise in
September 2011, combatting smuggling activities, interdicting
drug trafficking, protecting intellectual property rights and
safeguarding consumer interests. He became Secretary for the
Civil Service in July 2015 before proceeding on retirement in
July 2017.

Ho Fu Ho, Jonathan

AEx

REINE ARSI EER

Mr Ho joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority (MPFA) as Head (External Affairs) in August 2018. (His
title was later retitled as Director (External Affairs)). He oversees
a wide range of publicity related functions of the MPFA
including corporate communications, media relations, MPF
scheme member education and stakeholder engagement.

Before joining MPFA, Mr Ho worked in the areas of corporate
communication and journalism in various organizations for
over three decades including Hong Kong Productivity Council,
Hong Kong Housing Authority, Cable TV and Television
Broadcasts Ltd.
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CHEUNG Wan Ching, Clementcss, ip

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority

From 21 November 2018
Current appointment expires
on 20 November 2021

H2018&E 11 H21 HiE
BRIMEHZE2021FE 1B 20 HER
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BRECHEERD 20587 AlALKEER
BREE > BEE2017E78BK -

From 26 August 2019
Current appointment expires
on 25 August 2022
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LAU Man Man, Lisa sss, MH, 3P

#1323 8BS, MH, 3P
Industry representative

ERAAR

From 19 October 2015
Current appointment expires
on 18 October 2021

EH2015E10819 HiE
BefEHEZE 202110 18 HER

Ms Lau is the Creative Director of GAL Graphics Consultants
Limited. She is an expert in design branding and publicity and
has served on various government councils and advisory
committees. In her past role as Chair of the Hong Kong Council
on Smoking and Health (COSH), she was involved in raising
awareness of the harm associated with second-hand smoke
through social media, putting forward an amendment to the
Smoking (Public Health) Ordinance and raising tobacco taxes.

Ms Lau currently serves as a member of Hospital Authority
Board Committee and Advisor at The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent
Society, Kowloon. She was appointed as Justice of the Peace
(non-official) in 2006 and awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in
2013 by the Government of the HKSAR.

LEUNG Sze Ho, Louis

22z 12 GAL Graphics Consultants
Limited MBI1EARE: - BT E RN GIERE
REEHE > BEEARNITHERFEE
ZEZEERE - TIETEARENRREZES
FEHE > FEEZEGUMETHBSE
ZFENHEE  NEBIEBREEEARE
RIBINEER o

Rt RARREEREESME RN LS
KRR o BT RITE2006F K 20134
EEARINITHERREEAFETRNTHALTR
TEEIAEFEE o

From 9 December 2019
Current appointment expires

=
REM on 8 December 2022
University Grants Committee Secretariat B2019412 89 HiE
REYBEHEERWER BHI{ERE 20224125 8 HEM

Mr Leung is the Deputy Secretary-General of the University
Grants Committee Secretariat. He provides support for the
University Grants Committee in areas such as academic
planning, funding, student affairs, campus development and
internationalisation in respect of the eight publicly-funded
universities in Hong Kong. He is also the Secretary of the
Quality Assurance Council and oversees universities' matters
relating to the quality of teaching and learning.

RELERABHEENZES RN ERINER >
AR/ \ERBENRSEBMTIEE ~ B
BEER RERBEZRRMEFCEFHBR/AS
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Board of Directors
BERB

— Y SO Ka Pik, Linda
- BReE
Hong Kong Monetary Authority
EREHMEERR

Ms So has been appointed as Executive Director (Corporate
Services) of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA) since
January 2020, and is responsible for corporate development,
corporate services and communication strategy. Ms So holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and a Master of Arts
degree from the University of Cambridge. She has many years
of experience in public policy, administration and corporate
affairs. Before joining HKMA, Ms So served as the Corporate
Affairs Director of MTR Corporation, the Director General of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries and was a member of the
civil service for over 20 years. Ms So is currently a member of
the Hong Kong Public Libraries Advisory Committee, the
Advisory Board of The Hong Kong Red Cross and the Public
Relations Committee of The Community Chest of Hong Kong.

WAN Chi Yiu, Andrew
RS

Securities and Futures Commission
BENAEEREREZEY

Mr Wan is Chief Financial Officer of the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC), overseeing finance and administration,
corporate planning, human resources, information technology
and external relations. As a member of the SFC's Executive
Committee, he is responsible for formulating and executing
corporate strategies to improve the SFC's regulatory capability
and effectiveness.

In his over 30 years of extensive financial and business
experience, Mr Wan worked with leading professional firms
and served as chief financial officer of listed companies in
Hong Kong and Canada. He holds Bachelor of Commerce and
MBA degrees and is a member of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong.
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From 18 February 2020
Current appointment expires
on 17 February 2023
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From 19 October 2012
Current appointment expires
on 18 October 2021
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Meeting attendance record E:&HEso R

Meetings attended/held Remarks
HEEERY BITRE st

Lester HUANG (Chairman) 4[4
= (XFE)
David KNEEBONE (General Manager) 4[4
1 (194512
AUYEUNG Pak Kuen, Rex 3/4
ERfZARE
CHEUNG Wan Ching, Clement 3/4
REE
HO Fu Ho, Jonathan 3/3 Appointed as member effective
AExR 26 August 2019

201948 26 HEZEAKE
LAU Man Man, Lisa 2/4
B>
LEUNG Sze Ho, Louis 1N Appointed as member effective
2B 9 December 2019

H2019F 12 HOBEZERKE
SO Ka Pik, Linda 1N Appointed as member effective
BRE 18 February 2020

20202 A 18 HEZEAME
WAN Chi Yiu, Andrew 44
BEE
CHAN Wai Man, Darryl 3/3 Appointment expired on
PRI 18 February 2020

20202 H18 HEHRfE
CHENG Yan Chee 11 Appointment expired on
RS 8 May 2019

201945 A 8 HIEHA/E
WONG Ming Wai, Winnie 1/3 Appointment expired on

FEHE

9 December 2019
201912 B9 BEHER
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Online store owner with
a green mission

BRiGEERREERRS

Eva is the founder of an online store that
specialises in handmade soaps. As a green
entrepreneur, starting a business was not easy
for her, but the rewards go far beyond money.
She believes that it's in everyone's interest to
consume less and choose wisely. By being
more conscious about how we spend our
money and promote sustainable living, we can
all work together to sow the seeds for a
greener future.
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Targeted Education Programmes

it B IR EN AT 5T E

As our target audiences can be found in every age
group, we have created a wide range of financial

education programmes designed to meet
individual needs. We continually strive to deliver
and refine our financial education programmes
so that we can cater to all key segments of the
Hong Kong population.

REZENEEHEBEFRNFRE - FILIHFIHE
ZRLNVEMBTHE > MERSFTRATHEE - HM
THEEBRNRHNTESEM B TR LEEEEFRE
FEHME -

In 2019/20 we further refined our financial education
programmes and extended their reach through our
partnerships with NGOs and organisations in the education
and private sector.

Schoolchildren

We believe that one of the most effective ways to provide
financial education is by reaching children at an early stage in
their lives, when they are most receptive to learning money
management skills.

Primary schools

The Chin Family Financially Literate Schools
(FL Schools)

This programme gives students the opportunity to develop
major financial competencies, as outlined in the Hong Kong
Financial Competency Framework. Our objective with this
programme is to have FL Schools sustain financial education
on their own and to become role models for other schools.
During the year, we continued to support FL Schools by
helping them to develop action plans and guidelines for
whole-school financial education, based on the principle of
‘learn it, live it, teach it and embed it’.

In the 2019/20 academic year, 8 schools joined the programme
to bring the total up to 13 schools. Activities co-organised with
the programme partner, The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
included open class observations and a year-end sharing
session for over 300 principals and teachers.

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2019-20

HME201920 FEMETEEMHEE
TEBRALEEE HERRMNEREAE
st BRERNESHRE -

B ==
=82
HMRARNAREREEMBEEREINS
Fw2— RARRERREEHEMES > 085
LHMM2E R ERBE I -

INER
TERBIEMBER

et ER S LR B HBIEM BN RBRIIER
FTREMEESN > LEERS AN BNBRERTT
RFERBERMIEMEE - MAEMBRE
B o HPIREREERR UER 38 ~ B8Rk
AL BRRAY - B2 HE BIBBRHETE 5
BIMFES| » LUEITREERBVEMHE -

7£2019/208 % - BAESHMBRMAFE > <2
B RINS2RAREUEE 13/ - WMIEABINEE
BHBEBPXABRAMSHELRER > UNE
00 RERMBEAHENFRNES -



Financial Literacy Ambassador Programme for
Primary Students

Our NGO partner Po Leung Kuk received funding from HSBC
in 2019 to deliver this programme. In the programme, senior
primary students were trained as ambassadors to teach money
management concepts to junior primary students through
card games and learning activities.

Teaching Your Kids About Money Parent-child
Workshop

Together with our NGO partner, the Hong Kong Family Welfare
Society, and the Education Bureau, we continued to organise
this workshop that assists parents in guiding their children on
basic financial matters. Some of the sessions were funded by
Prudential Hong Kong Limited.

L4 4

INBIBRFAESTE

NBEPAEFH BN ERESEBHERER
R2010 FEELRITEBN SR IES) - 7E518
T BN BRERRTIEIINAEMAME > I
FREM BRSNS EEE - my)/\BEEE
RS o

M5is) RERMRF IS

RPEERAHBER R ERESEBHEERE
BHESMEEIEY > HBIRRAFLER
EARBIEMAH o StEIEDHRBRHAREER
NEEHEBRERN FEW -

in the FL Schools
programme learn how
to manage money.
SRS EREEN 2 RTE
R/ NBEBBINAIE RS L o

% Primary schoolchildren

Members of IFEC, Po Leung Kuk and HSBC at the kick-off of the Financial Literacy
Ambassador Programme for Primary Students in the 2019/20 school year.

BEE - RERBELRITHRREE 2019/20 25/ 2 EM A F BB ER o
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Targeted Education Programmes

HEBEMANBEE

Secondary schools
GET $ET GO! Money Management Workshop

This life-simulation workshop was co-organised with the
Education Bureau and Hong Kong Family Welfare Society, our
NGO partner, to help students acquire money management
skills and make financial decisions.

The Hong Kong Family Welfare Society will continue to receive
funding support from the HSBC 150th Anniversary Charity
Programme and plans to deliver over 200 workshops from
2016 to 2021.

$avvy Planner Workshop

Our NGO partner, the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups,
continued to receive funding support fromm HSBC during the
year for delivering this workshop, which equips students with
the knowledge and skills required to make career and life
planning decision through a board game.

The workshops are targeted to reach over 7,000 senior
secondary school students during the 2018-2020 year.

Teaching resources

The IFEC provides programmes for schoolteachers to help
them incorporate financial management knowledge into their
lessons. A number of workshops are held throughout the year
so that teachers can be trained on how to implement these
teaching resources.

For primary schoolteachers
INBHENE R

@ Money Management
VBRI
Based on the General N
Studies for Primary Schools E!'S
Curriculum Guide (2017),

this resource can also be s w
matched with Personal '.',::'“ g
Growth Education, Moral . 3 \
and Civic Education, ﬂ ‘
Mathematics and o, s f |
Information Technology for @’ = \

cross-curricular teaching.
BEHMIRERE BRI 2017 F48 "
mANBE R RIZIESEE
MAEEESBEARERE - EE8&
NRHE  HBREARKER
B ETEERHE -
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For secondary schoolteachers
R 2T &R

Junior Secondary Money Management
Mh&EEE

This resource covers different financial
management topics within the Personal,
Social & Humanities Education, Technology
Education or Moral and Civic Education
curriculum.
EEHMEEZE
B EE > URE
BIA ~ 3B E A
B BRHEREE
RARBBEHRE °




Social Worker Financial Literacy
Trainer Programme

L TR S EmIE S 5t &

Jointly organised by the Baptist Oi Kwan Social
Service and the Child Development Fund, this
programme provided workshops to more than

170 social workers on how to use our teaching
resources, together with the Money Management
card game and $avvy Planner board game, to deliver
financial knowledge and skills to children, parents
and mentors.

IHERREEEREMERBENAERRESTAM > B170
SRATIRAEIIIEY - BPIRESERRMNKR2ER -
HEREEE K TEEMEREIXK R LES > mEVF « KRR
TR M (SR IR A R A AN LIS o

Money Mathematics
SERERHP

Mathematical skills are essential when it comes to
managing money. For junior secondary schoolteachers,
we have developed a Money Mathematics teaching
resource covering various money management topics.
During the year, we organised two workshops in
collaboration with the Education Bureau to help more
than 60 teachers familiarise themselves with this
resource and apply it in their teaching.

B kEREEFTEREHNBRMAEIT > BbFHFRHBH
Hems st (ERERBB) B > AR EEFRANEHREETE -
B ERNERT R SRS TIFY > RBIB60 LK T 2
MARRAEERIRERSBE -

$avvy Planning

4EIRRA SR AN

To support the increasing need for career and life
planning education, this resource investigates
common financial management issues that students
may face in their further studies and career.
EEBMEATEHMERL EREIAEHEE B BTG

B3R BB ATEENE L REmEE RIEAERE -

Stock Trading Guru
) Money Issues in Liberal Studies P RS A
" IRAE R A e This board game is a supplementary
teaching tool for the Business,
Accounting and Financial Studies

This resource covers financial management
topics for the senior secondary Liberal

Studies, Personal, Social & Humanities curriculum.
Education or Moral and Civic Education ERRLEHREE - Bt AR BT REFRE
curriculum. HEBIHEBT A o

EEBMERESEEMTE > lRa=sPEH
BA N HEEAXBBHARBERLARBEERE -
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Targeted Education Programmes

HEBEMANBEE

The IFEC has been working alongside tertiary institutions to
offer programmes that can help prepare their students for
the financial challenges they may face at work or in their
personal lives.

Personal Finance Ambassador Programme

The IFEC co-organised this programme with St. James’
Settlement in 2019/20. St. James’ Settlement received the
funding from Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. In
the programme, participants were organised into teams and
trained as ambassadors for tertiary students.

All ambassadors were trained at a day camp, and 13 teams
delivered a variety of financial education projects for tertiary
students. Completed in the 2019 fall semester, it involved 13
teams from 12 tertiary institutions who developed projects that
reached over 2,000 students through different channels.

i HKEX

EREAn

Ambassadors loosen up at the day camp
and work together to develop a financial
education strategy.
EANEBMAEEBEETRASES » RARENHIE
BB R o

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2019-20

REE—HEAERRGFRHSEHFHE
MMBERFER » ERBEBHEE LAIEB L
BORA S HEEL o

EIAIRB K fE

FERRE YRR ERH Y 2019/20EEE
W ERRERIINESE B B EBETH
B o BMEtEINAEENBIZZE - HAREA
TRRAARfE o

BMENAI3E - FAENBREI > RAERER
ERAELEMRNIEMEEFE - 581552019
FNE2HTL - RE12FMAERRMIZAL
FBEBTERE > @iEE2,000 % KERBHT
BUHEE -




Practical Personal Financial Management

We again collaborated with tertiary institutions to embed this
programme into their credit-bearing elective courses. Covering
essential financial life skills, money and credit management,
financial planning, insurance and investment, it reached 21
tertiary institutions through 50 classes delivered to 2,027
tertiary students.

Workplace Money Workshop

This workshop gives final year tertiary students the financial
skills they will need after graduation, both in their personal
lives and in the workplace. During the review period, 15
workshops were held at 12 tertiary institutions and reached
a total of 687 students.

Working adults

During the 2019/20 year, we continued to offer financial
education programmes both to young adults who are just
entering the workforce and to those who are close to
retirement age.

Blended Learning Programme

We kept piloting this programme with a series of seminars
and online courses (e.g. Common Investment Products and
Basic Investment Concepts) that enable working adults to
learn about investment and retirement planning at their own
pace. A total of 272 participants enrolled in the programme.

Programme evaluation
st

(o)
79 /O of the participants
agreed that the two

programme components
complemented each other
79% 2 &R B AN HRETE
HEEHHE B

89% of the participants

agreed that the online
module strengthened their
investment knowledge

89% BMERBH L EBETHILE
fFI B9 4% B R 34

BEREAEM

HPIBRERERREE  BILETBIRAMFIE
BREERE > AR REEEIEMKREE - 884
FEEE - MBRE - RERMNRENH - BalH
BQBAZRRIMETEE - BBS505REBR
2,027 KEE ©
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Homepage of the
online courses.
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Targeted Education Programmes

HEBEMANBEE

Manage My Finance

For young working adults who have recently graduated or
joined the workforce, this programme helps them to acquire
the knowledge, skills and appropriate attitudes they will need
to manage their personal finances.

The programme comes in two versions of different durations
and can be embedded into employers’ existing induction,
orientation, wellness and training schemes. Held in
partnership with the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups,
the programme reached 483 young working adults in 8
organisations.

RetireWise

In this programme, employees of participating organisations
learned how to review their retirement needs and plan
accordingly. Topics included financial needs in retirement,
basic steps in developing a retirement plan, and analysis of
financial products such as the tax deductible Qualifying
Deferred Annuity Policy and Voluntary Health Insurance
Scheme.

A total of 1,310 participants from 23 organisations attended the
programme, with over 92% saying they would recommend it
to colleagues and friends.

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2019-20
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Staff of the Hong Kong Housing
Society at a RetireWise
Programme session.

EREEHERES M EIERK)
BEE TS -

iRk

SRR ARENRESTRRE CHENKRT
- WFHSENRE - SHEATRERARED
MBRE - FIERKFBNELTHRERER
2 FIIE RN S ERERESRENBR
BRETE -

FRHERB23EHEIENTI0REESHES
gl ERo2% M2 mMEXRTERREEMARE
BULEtE -



Human resources seminar on
staff engagement

ANEIFBEE

In June 2019, we collaborated with Recruit and Vital Employee
Service Consultancy to organise a human resources seminar on
the topic of staff engagement. At the seminar, an IFEC
representative spoke to over 150 human resources professionals
on the benefits of engaging employees on financial education.
52019 F 6 A Recruit RER NESRFEERSE » BMUSTRAE
AETBEHANERBE - HEEGHNRNBELES0ZMUANEREEAL >
PEHEEES S HIEMATHER ©

According to a study by the Office of the Government RIEB T BRI AZERAZE > T752018 %
Economist’, “between 2018 and 2038, the size and share of the 20384 » EZEAONEGELE S BN —E >
elderly population will almost double from 1.27 million and HEANIZ7ENEE 2448 A > ALMSEEEIRH
17.9% to 2.44 million and 31.9% respectively.” This trend 17.9% FFHE31.9% o HESLEETRNAS
represents an enormous challenge, as many people will not ABNASERT HREE » EEBSRMER
have saved sufficient funds for their retirement. For this FHEE A o« BEDI » BIISEBAA LISME

reason, we offer programmes that help retirees to manage
their retirement savings and protect themselves against
financial scams.

M EE > BEMPIEERAGES - UKL
thFIEEARRR o

' Population ageing trend of Hong Kong:
https://www.hkeconomy.gov.hk/en/pdf/el/el-2019-02.pdf

(BFENAOSHELER)
https://Mww.hkeconomy.gov.hk/tc/pdf/el/el-2019-02¢.pdf
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HEBEMANBEE

Digital Financial Services Workshop

Held over two sessions, this workshop is specifically designed
for retirees and uses simulation games to demonstrate
financial technologies such as e-wallets and biometric
authentication.

Our aim is to ensure retirees are able to keep pace with
technological developments in financial management and
reduce the chance of being excluded from the digital financial
services that are available in Hong Kong.

) In this simulation game,
retirees learn how to use new
digital financial services such
as electronic wallets.

BIKATF BRERER 0 2BER
BFEaLSHNE LIEMRT -

Health and Wealth

An advanced Health and Wealth Programme was launched
during the review period to help retirees understand the
growing number of investment and insurance products
available to them.

Nearly all retirees (96%) agreed that the programme inspired
them to review the way they invest or assess their personal
insurance needs.

Retiree Financial Literacy Ambassadors

In this programme, retirees are selected and trained to
become ambassadors and provide simple financial education
messages to the elderly in the community.

In addition to The Chin Family 3rd Age Financial Literacy
Ambassadors programme, similar retiree ambassador
programmes were arranged with Senior Police Call (SPC),
Wisdom Hub of Methodist Church, New Territories West Elder
Academies Cluster and Smart Seniors of HSBC.
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Programme evaluation
sHEIETE

80% of the participants were

confident about using e-wallets
80% 2MEXRTHEVEREFHE

72% of the participants

recognised the need to keep pace
with developments in fintech
72% 2MEARRERMERBRNER

fRERE R

RPIEFERHEHER R MRERERM 518 - 1
BERIRA T T R#MERENKRENRBES °

EXRZRESME (96%) Rt BIREREE M
ENERECHNREANHTEERBRTE -

BIRIERAAGE
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Thematic talk on electronic
wallets

EFREEEBE

Together with the Institute of Financial
Technologies of Asia and the HKU School of
Professional and Continuing Education, we
organised a talk on electronic wallets for
more than 110 participants in December 2019.
BrEENERPAEMSENESAREEECS RS
E > H2019F 2 AR ME FHEE T EHEE > LHBA
TMOAZN ©

TS T o

LR ]

=

The Chin Family 3rd Age Financial
Literacy Ambassadors convey
financial education messages to
children at the Good Old Times
summer event.
BREGEE S IRIBI AR TRCEIRTT
TiF) BHRFEBFE/NBR D ZER
HEEN  EREFZE o

Two SPC Wealth Management Anti-Scam Ambassadors shared
uﬂ” money management tips with celebrity guests, who included

Ms Law Lan, Mr Shek Sau and his son Mr Sam Chan, during the

5th anniversary ceremony of the programme.

1 TELERRRPIAI G EINABEER > RAELERMBREMA

W NEEHZEMOE > GERR AERERFRFER -
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Public Campaigns and Resources
ili/ﬁ@]&ﬁlﬁ

To increase the effectiveness of our education work,
we organise events and mass media campaigns to
engage the public through multiple touchpoints.

We also provide various resources and tools on

The Chin Family website, including online calculators
and learning resources, for people to make better
financial decisions and increase their levels of
financial literacy.

HIEMEBEMBEHN > REGR|MSPELIR BT R AR GRS
HEEY > BEITRAREZETER > RETE EREE)
MILRESAIRNERNIE > SEALATRNBBHM
LURA ARV R AR AEES » MAELERAENMETRE o

Public events LAIEEN

Good Old Times BRI TIF

More than 10,000 children between the ages of 4 and 10 BESH2019FE6 290 E 7 80 H A
participated in the IFEC Good Old Times summer family MBS YLERIT TIF) B FES) » SH1E3|
campaign, held from 29 June to 9 July 2019. #283810,000% 4 E10 /A E 20 o

The aim of this educational campaign was to teach money WS EE S U E 5 5 S R IR A

concepts to children in an interactive environment. The event
featured role-play activities, a talent contest, storytelling, and
free activity sheets that helped to reinforce the importance of
financial education for children, while also introducing

The Chin Family tools and resources.
‘ l = ! o200

B NBRREAGRES - TELLE - BHE
RREESHTIFRE > IaEEHEZ FIEME
2N TEETHREE NEMBEITAN
BiR e

Public Events . m' ceeet
AFEH . =
L 1 | BT
Multiple .
Good Old '-I'imes-. - tOUChPOintS :
B ERIT I 'l ,l',i'l??;?m with the IFEC
EEK *&ﬁﬁ \E
World Investor Week " .
1t BRI EEE The Chin

Family Website
BRXAEEMNHE
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Mass Media
KREE
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E-newsletter
EBFEA

Facebook

Children signed up for
various jobs and learned
basic money concepts

at the Good Old Times
summer family campaign.

NARTE B ENRAT L7 25
RPEHPRMEREY > 28
BERHIBEMEE o

Inspired by The Chin Family
theme song, a group of
children, parents and
grandparents showed off their
talents through singing, drama,
sign language and dancing,

as well as beatbox and roller
skating performances.

SNABAENDARAMPINRE
FIERE > LUSER ~ 55B) ~ F55
k5% > IR ORRREBKES
BETHRREHE) TEM -

Borrowing and debt campaign

HRREHEEED
mq-:-wu
B = 02 B
TEs I F omap e
— T
R . s S
i T e S
ﬁ

Games and activity
sheets for kids
HFIERRHEE T (F4R

Parenting
e-newsletter
HFEEA

Instagram

10,000+

children visited the
activity booths

#BiA10,000 L REL R
SEENB L R b

30,000+

free take-home activity
sheets were distributed

Jk%it8i8 30,000 R
RE R T (FAR

98%

of parents whose
children participated
found the event
interesting and useful
BiBo8% BT Z—FSH
EBNRERAIHEBER

Media activities

Tools
HBTA
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Public Campaigns and Resources
NBEHRER

World Investor Week 2019
(30 September - 6 October)

For the third year running, we organised World Investor Week,
an initiative led by the International Organization of Securities
Commissions (IOSCO), during which we offered a range of
educational content and activities for retail investors. The 2019
campaign focused on the impact of technology on today’s
financial markets and covered topics such as fintech products
and services, online investing, initial coin offerings,
cybersecurity and hacking threats.

We also extended our support to other participating financial
institutions, such as the Ring the Bell for Financial Literacy
event organised by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (HKEX) and World Financial Planning Day by the
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong.

Based on discussions in an IFEC-led IOSCO working group, we
published the Core Competencies Framework on Financial
Literacy for Investors to support the development and
implementation of investor education initiatives across various
jurisdictions.

[E—

maw
IFEC

HKEX

L 23§

! m%%
- Ring the

Bell for

“"Rinancial Literacy

B Srptetay 710

Launch ceremony of the Ring the Bell for
Financial Literacy event, organised by HKEX.

Mr Andrew Wan (3rd from left), Chief Financial
Officer of the Securities and Futures Commission
and Board Member of the IFEC, delivered a
speech on the importance of financial education.
EAERGARTHN TAEMBEME BHEN - HEgy
EMBEERREREE/IMEREELRE (ES) 558
FRERIBMHENERHERES -
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RPEES —FRNHEFESFERERERY
B (EFRESETAS) BN RITEER -
BEAREERM-RINBFERTES - S
EPNEMERRKBRS ERTIENTE
RERNEE SRR ERRRE - AL
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BT EERIEERES > fIWmER
REFBM T RBEMBERE - UREBMH
REEMB G MR EEREIA, -

tesh - HIRERRESARE T —ERREES
BE TR MBS > HfIER T (REEZD
EBEENZRE) - UHEHBIENZBREE
HEEH -

On 28 September, over 300 people attended the
Retail Investor Seminar on factors affecting
investment decisions, with a focus on analysing the
traditional and virtual banking sector. The event
was jointly hosted by the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA), CFA Institute, Hong
Kong Society of Financial Analysts and the IFEC.

HBIB3002 S MEHERIR 28 AR TNREERTHEE - &
NEREEEAE « FHFERONEIGE « FEMES

MR ERREEEN  RARERERENEER > [HHI2E
BERTTIR M R B SRITRO DA RS -
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IFEC Borrowing and Debt Calculator
EMERREHER

This newly-designed handy calculator can be used for four
types of common loan products: personal instalment
loans, revolving loans, credit card cash instalments and
credit card cash advances. With the calculator, users can
visualise the outcomes of different repayment amounts,
repayment periods and annualised percentage rates for
review and comparison.

Ittt B ERR N EE RNERER » SFEEASRER &
RER  GAFRESHNEAFRESS - FAETRRKLERET
FEREEE « ERARERENETHER

Mass media education campaigns

Borrowing and debt campaign

Online loan providers have made obtaining a loan in Hong
Kong much easier today. Consumers are constantly exposed
to aggressive marketing campaigns, including advertisements
and cold-calls, soliciting them to take out loans and

credit facilities.

To remind consumers to think carefully before borrowing,

we launched the borrowing and debt campaign, which ran
from February to March 2020. The campaign featured a
newly-designed Borrowing and Debt Calculator, TV and radio
APIs and a series of online videos.

Through a fairy tale character,
Chin-derella, we reminded the public
to consider the need to borrow and
their ability to repay their loan.
BrIEBEFEAY MHBHIR) - REQARERE
AIEEEECHBIRREMEREES

KRIREHE T

BRREHEGED
ERARREELEREN > SEBTRRES
FTLUESERR o FIBS  APAE RSB EI AL
J\FIERERES  FINERESNRESER
BOIR 545 o

BREBEARETESH =8 » HMH2020F 28

EIAEHEIANEBEREEED > SiFEEEH
RN ERNEREE EENEAREEE

Lo UR—RIWEFR °
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Public Campaigns and Resources

DRBEEREIR

Chinese New Year campaign EBEMEEGEH

In January 2020, we published a sitelet with tips, tools and F20204E18 » B EEEE > 2HHEE
videos that help members of the public to plan and spend ALt ~ TEMEE > BB AS s aesE
wisely during the Chinese New Year. BREDSES o

We also organised a free money management parenting PN 20201 B 11 B R 6 B B T IR T

workshop on 11 January 2020. The workshop featured a sharing 5 SEREBRRE BT RE MR ER
? BRIREFIR N 2RWE =

session by school principals, parent influencers and an IFEC - - RN )

1on by sehoo principats, parent It _ REREH MR EEREM AR ERAEER
representative who addressed the importance of teaching the .
\ $t' o

value of money and ethics to children.

'-L’IU Cooking videos on how to prepare

% Children were challenged to buy festive budget-friendly CNY festive dishes.

food and decorations for CNY with a fixed G B R A A E B Y N E
amount of money. fERARS o

E(EREFEEAR)ER - 2MEH/ N REE
DERHNEZEMFES o

Around 200 parents and children attended the free
money management parenting workshop, which
included story-telling, a magic show and DIY workshops.
RA200 B REM/NBRSERERFIEM TIE - FBRNBEE
BEE SR E S BITRBENFIELES o
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dedicated sitelet, leaflet, TV commercial and
online videos, seminars and a series of outdoor,
online and social media promotions. The online
videos generated 1.03 million views while the
campaign sitelet received 420,000 page views.

& The QDAP and TVC campaign included a

EERICHREERE N ONREES BEEEREFES
BRARREETHE  OEEENE EFER Y EF7 The seminar on the Voluntary Health Insurance
EERALEER B UR—RFIFI - B ERHRE Scheme drew a full house.

BEM - Hb > BLEZRMERSZEIOSBAR » &&
FEENZERBRNEE42E -

Tax deductible retirement saving

Voluntary savings are an important pillar in the World Bank's
multi-pillar framework addressing the retirement needs of an
ageing population.

Since 1 April 2019, taxpayers have been entitled to a deduction
by taking advantage of qualifying deferred annuity policies
(QDAP) or tax deductible MPF voluntary contributions (TVC)
for their retirement savings.

We worked with the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau, the Insurance Authority (IA) and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority to launch a campaign
aimed at enhancing the public's understanding of QDAP

and TVC as well as their ability to evaluate different retirement
planning tools. The campaign ran from April to late

August 2019.

Voluntary Health Insurance Scheme

On 1 April 2019, the Food and Health Bureau launched the
Voluntary Health Insurance Scheme (VHIS) to increase the
protection levels of individual indemnity hospital insurance
products.

We worked with the VHIS Office and the IA to educate the
public on the scheme via a sitelet and seminar.

BFRE Rt BB RE R EE ©

ANREBARFHE

BREf#E R RIRITEZN RARREAKRIE)

ZHNEEIR > MEHEBCAORNRKEE -

H2019F 48 1HE » MR AT LUSBE S EIKIE

HRESFRBHANRBTES BREEHUETERRK

#E > KMEBHREE -

HRPEREEBNERR - REBREEERM A

MABEAYEER/R2019F4AEBA RS

HEZY REMRALRHEERLERFEERE
eI REE B RN RS2 - Bt T
R EHESBRBRNRETA -

B FEE (R EI

F20198 4818 > BYRAEREEEHE
BRHE > URFHEAERERRBERD
1R o

Bhit - IS BRER R 51 RIS IR RIS
BEBAIE  BREEELTIRENARBR
SRS o
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Public Campaigns and Resources

NWEHRER

- ———

ﬁ Videos by financial experts showed
retail investors how to analyse
investment fundamentals in five
popular sectors.

ERERR FARE BTN SERFIT
(XRERENERRER -

We adopted a humorous

@ approach with a series of online
videos to address money
matters relevant to the young
generation.

?%U&QIEFAEEIDTEA@% FfIm
(FERFAIR SRR LR R B PI D =12

m 16 nnanEe ﬂa‘uﬂ,% o
noid EnAe
-— o = ——
e ———— i e —
BnEN (1] | ——_
We reminded people to il :_'_1?1"-::-__'-—; B As sustainability and social
pay attention to 7 steps for v n responsibility have become
their retirement planning: sureeree w2 vvm. |ncreasur19|y important
think, budget, share, act, ot - among |nve§tors, we
save, protect and review. e s s, ]Ic'c.lunched a sitelet on green
X e inance to promote more

IR ERA TR ARG - ‘ _
AR AT R awareness of this global trend.

EEHH B 81T

AR AL 3 BINE
e ~ RAAR o RRASREEMIFTRENTN

FEMERNTEEE > KD
GSETRERRNEERBREX

RME ©
Retirement planning BHRRE
We launched this campaign to help the public plan for their W EEEEEBIHEEMEREINZEREEIN
retirement. Materials supporting the campaign included tEEELSE » UNBRES - F2EAKRES0

illustrations and radio drama segments covering the 7 steps of METIE, MG ASABKRTZEEE o
retirement planning, MPF, annuities and tax deductions for
retirement savings. ﬁﬁﬂ'@éﬂf—%?ﬂﬁ*ﬁi RN FEREERN

=
. . REALUEBIRE » BHIRIKIER o
Audio programmes were also produced to give elderly people

with reading difficulties an acce'ssible a.ltern.ative for learning FREES IR 25
about money management during their retirement.

# 7 EREE T RIAMARRRITERRET
Sector analysis video series DI 0 HAIFE2019F 12 BERE—RTIER »

To give investors a framework on the key factors to consider B A AE IS}ZuEUSFﬂﬁJ-Fﬁmiﬁ?FﬁEﬁ‘iﬁ%ﬁﬂz
when analysing different stock sectors, we produced a series of R ARG ATHER » RARLIR S

videos in late December 2019. The videos featured financial APMTREFIEERMNERER - BIERIT
journalist Karina Fan, who spoke to experts from the CFA R ~ HEE J%ﬂﬂé?xﬁf‘“%&ﬁ%ﬂaﬁ AR
Institute and ACCA on which investment fundamentals retail FEE o

investors should look at in five popular sectors, namely
banking, insurance, property development, REITs and
telecommunication.
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Social media campaign

During the year, we collaborated with Manner Production on a
social media campaign on money management for young
people. Through a series of videos and interactions between
Manner’s influencers and The Chin Family characters on digital
platforms, we were able to acquire new followers for our IFEC
Instagram page. This page now serves as a valuable resource
for young people looking for information on financial planning,
good financial habits and behaviour change.

The Chin Family blog

Through The Chin Family characters, we blog on money
matters closely related to day-to-day life events and personal
finance, as well as investment trends and insights. The content
of the blog spans lifestyle and financial topics such as travel,
health, festive spending, wedding planning, home renovation,
loans and insurance. Since its launch, the IFEC Blog has
registered over 180,000 page views.

Transforming our website

We continually look into improving the experience of our
website users. In December 2019, we unveiled a new
consumer-friendly interface that includes features such as an
enhanced search function that allows users navigate the site
more easily and intuitively.

R BREE SRS

FR o BPIEMBRRETEEFRITHRERE
B38 > BESADZEHAE - BB—RIE
iR URMBEANASEREE I RERS
NALEE > RNFESAERNMHERRE Lk
SIEZ ANEBHIREE Instagram tRF © IREFH
fIfY Instagram ik A A FEAREZ X ZEDN
BB REEN - UREL RFIEMBENTAN
Bhit o

MEExRAFE st

HPIEBR MR AE ) ZERERENREERR
BAEESES  nEERBERLEE - AAERM
RIcBEBBMNERENEMEN - FRABHE
HEERNEEY TRE - FIINGREE - 258 - 61H
X - BHEEE RERE ERRRRS -
BHEH LR > et SiEBR 18 BRI B R -

2 i

BREGRNEA BREE ALNAAEER -
WH2019F 12 B HEAERAFNFHFRE > M
AZIEHINBERFARIES » BREBAFEERSR
5 B8 1t B EE 4B UL e S FRFRAVE A ©
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Money learning resources N AAge-appreciate activity
A prmpnexsl sheets are available free of
for parents and children charge on the Parenting and
BN - " M tal.
BT EMARHR *;nfjix?;g%}i%ﬁ‘é»tﬁeﬁ
RERAIUE VI 3RE

Our Parenting and Money portal provides TEAREERSF L RS T
parents with tips and tools to turn day-to-day VR4 o
activities into valuable financial learning
experiences for their children. These include e e

] =

free age-appropriate activity sheets on money ;
basics, such as how to shop within a budget, iy
set a savings goal, count money and change,
and track expenses.

EMe (RFIERSEE) AR B RMURFIEMAZENT
B BEFHEERESNIEMB T EE o SEETREE
EFRERNEEBE TR > ADREESERESE
ERTAEEY  STIURERR - stESBMNE » UKE
BE%E -
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Public Campaigns and Resources

/A

REBREIR
Communicating in the digital age
WEHEERA
P - We rolled out an Instagram page in April 2019 to
IR LR e it G =i =3 raise awareness of the importance of financial
RRAR HEARRE literacy among young adults in Hong Kong.
T, Featuring Chin Junior as the face of IFEC, our
- " ESSUREIENEE AT - KANLEN Instagram page delivers messages in various
:a-:é'?_*--_:?%-::-': e formats that resonate with our target segment.
FMIRHE2019F 4 H Bk InstagramiR B » US| HHEE
BAERMCEAIER - tREL T2 HEAH > URERERN
M D FIBME > FESFERAEFHI -
N o
= o .
| Pl e i meae
[ L T i L Mol
- W 2 e ATy
o 4 1. o IHE 'I‘h.‘\.ll.:!!
To reach our target audiences on Facebook more | TAEE
effectively, we adopted various Facebook feed E%ﬁ.mm -
formats including comics, games, creative visuals .
and videos. Tirgwaton i PE
Bffi7EFacebookift 2 LMY » Y BIEEE « A R
BE - BIREEMNF R - BREGVHEREH EHREE
BWEM o
In October 2019, we launched a new
ﬁ*&% @ set of WhatsApp stickers to heighten
ﬁ the public’s interest in day-to-day
- | @. money management.
ﬁ;* 20194108 » HMEHIH—8E MHRE
&1 WhatsAppftifl » HEE—FSIEHR
HAFEEREEREE o
-
As of 31 March 2020, The Chin Family recorded
#ZE2020F3H310 » ERFEI ERE
35,504,831 1,293,183
website page views website users*
EEV L8 fEREANE*
* Aggregation of the monthly
number of users who visited
our website at least once.

e 73,735 3,800
SASHREED —RHOERE Facebook page likes Instagram page followers
ABURAD - Facebook B HEIF A Instagram BHtE AHK
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Media collaborations
WREES1E

During the year, we sent IFEC representatives to
front media interviews and contributed to
columns in newspapers and magazines on current
financial and money management topics.

FR O REGHAREZEEGMN > LERSEEERX
T AAREEGHAMERNEEREREENEN

Finance and media veteran

@ Mr Heung Shu Fai (left) from Metro
Finance invited Mr Lester Huang,
IFEC Chairman (right), to talk about
the importance of prudent investing.
MM AENEFERREEEREEIEL
& (k) BAEREZEIREERMLE (B) &2
S B ERRENER M -

H [ERAE . F-EEnE]

R A |

EEADAERACRES (SER] BEGERN
[EEREAARENT RENE] WEEN - RN
Ll L Lt Dk et P L] i
AR - CHEANTEE ) - REREE
HE k) aRWHNE S AE s

EERBARA N AL A
ERYTERACPTEARABNAT AL -HER
- RRAHRLSIEnNuRN CHEER
®A - CLTEERENTAS #han

FRESHN - HEESENBAANEELED
o -RERAEEAT - N ANTEERELE
B JETEULERTIUEE.
T R AR L 1
A ASSYEEANR  FELSENEN

FEZyREGd  BERERMFENY - B
Lol FEET LT LT R L Ly B

f EEN e -
AT = BE TN
SERHEE - HEEEER
AANERSNALE - AR T
O L Y R -
LT O FET LA T ]
SHREERENDRE LS
EICMEREIEEHER

S

Law

[ LES L E T

EiaE-aSEoRuE Tagaaw
SR
T

PR AW 50 - B

il

Through byline
articles we draw
attention to current
and important
financial and money
management topics.

HANREMSEITIE
XELRA R RE A
ERIFNIERS SERERIRRE o

We make use of visual and
character narratives in comics
to engage a wider audience.
The Chin Family comic strips
are published in Sky Post, a
free newspaper.
EALZEEBNEENAS » W5
BIEREEIRENEEEBER
PR o MBREGEEENEE
HER (FF#HR) TIE ©
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Multitasking as a “slasher”

ZES PR THRIK

As someone who has held various jobs over the
past four years, Yammy considers herself to be a
slasher (a person with many different careers
and jobs, each separated by a “slash” on his or
her resume). Although she values her freedom,
she is also sensible when it comes to managing
her money. And while her income can vary
from month to month, with careful planning
Yammy is able to strike a balance between
living her dreams and earning a decent living.

Yammy ZENFEREFZSBIF - BREK (B
RTIEIE - TEWENBEBAIFEE) - h=REH

TEERIBE T RKE > AEHFETREF o #AM
HBALAREE » REMFEMRE > EITEEEE)
BIZHEE I 2B RETMERRBRENZEZR -

While many people look to make quick
profits on the stock market, it's far better
to make informed long-term investment
decisions based on sound financial
knowledge. We provide a wide selection
of money management tools and
resources on how to spend and invest
wisely, avoid debt traps, and choose the

right options for retirement planning.

MEERERT ERRER > RFAEREERT
WIEFAE > ARFLAERENRERE -
HPRESBEMITARBEER > BIREH
HERRERE  TEEREERRT > BREA
SR URERESEHCHNERRESE -
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration

BRANSE

Launched in 2015 as the Hong Kong Strategy for
Financial Literacy 2015-2018 and subsequently
revised in 2019, the Financial Literacy Strategy
addresses the financial education needs of
Hong Kong people by setting common desired
outcomes and promoting collaboration.

KZER2015FH H TEBSRIBRM H MM EE R
2015-2018) > HE 2019 F(EH 3T » A4
MEATEESIREE ) » BRI HEFEMNBERREE R
B BHEATRBEMBENEE -

Financial Literacy Strategy

The Financial Literacy Strategy sets out an approach for how
to improve financial literacy in Hong Kong and shows how
financial literacy is related to socio-economic issues that
concern policymakers and stakeholders.

The vision of the strategy is to empower the people of Hong
Kong to make informed and responsible financial decisions for
themselves and their family members that will ultimately
improve their overall well-being. As the owner of the Strategy,
the IFEC takes the lead on its implementation.

To realise this vision, our goal is to create an environment that
is conducive to delivering more quality financial education by
different stakeholders. This goal is propelled by three strategic
focuses, each associated with specific core actions:

1. Awareness: Increase the public’'s awareness of the benefits
of financial education to their financial well-being

2. Advocacy: Raise the awareness of policy makers and
stakeholders on how improving financial literacy levels
support their policy areas and work

3. Collaboration: Support collaboration among stakeholders
for delivery of more and higher quality financial education

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2019-20
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Financial education outcomes ERBBERER
Five target segments and key behavioural themes have been FRREE T AEE BN T BT ATE -

identified in the strategy.

Preparing financially for
future personal goals
RARFRAEN B BT B

Saving more for
retirement

RBRNEFEESHE
Making the most of

limited income
ERERABA

Building resilience against
financial adversity
BRBIE I D

Selecting suitable
financial products

l

A,
.

§ i

Youth Working The Elderly Vulnerable Schoolchildren
5F Adults RE Group 25
TEREREA S5 E

RESENERER

- Major Focus Relevant Educational

FEEH izl BB

Financial Education Coordination BERHEREZES
Committee EH R EHEEA 201967 BRI URE
The Financial Education Coordination Committee (FECC) was Mnse HRAEENREE BIXE - REEHN
formed in July 2019 to consolidate and reinforce support for B2 EIRM B BRI - BB &AM
the Strategy. The FECC comprises organisations actively A4~ BRETEE - SRS  TTREABNEXEE
engaged in financial education, including the government B ERES -

and related organisations, regulators, financial institutions, .
industry associations and professional bodies as well as NGOs. PSRRI T O 22 5ok

They have agreed to support the Strategy by: - ISR RYIR A BB 75 B BLSRBE 1R — B
aligning their financial education efforts with the Strategy - AT E B
assisting in the delivery of core actions - DEETEMBENRERE

sharing best practices

H 5 H RAER B IRV RE

identifying financial literacy issues . ARETREEE

providing feedback to the IFEC
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration

BRINEE
Financial Education Coordination B EHREEST
Committee

Members &8

Organisation #1548 Name 4

Investor and Financial Education Council AUYEUNG Pak Kuen, Rex (Chairperson)
RAEREMYEEEY Board member

BXFG{a#E (XF) #5RmE
CFA Institute - The Hong Kong Society of POLLARD, Nick*
Financial Analysts Managing Director, Asia Pacific, CFA Institute
CFAE — BBMEH N2 BER" CPABBTAGERRIDE

LEUNG, Mary~
Head, Advocacy, Asia Pacific, CFA Institute

RREL CFAGBEARITLSEIMELE

CHUNG Ka Fai, Franki®

President, The Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts

EXNEL EHBEHINMEERER

Citi NG Yin Yee, Angel*
b ize- A Chief Executive Officer, Hong Kong & Macau

RFEE* SERRMETR

FONG Wai, Wayne?
Head of Corporate Affairs

FIEL CEGARALEETE

Consumer Council WONG Fung Han, Gilly*

HEBEREE (E:ief Executive
HEM* ans

NG Ka Man, Carmen?
Head, Consumer Education Division

RREL HEEREDETE

Hong Kong Family Welfare Society LO Ka Lok, Annie*!
ERREESHE Acting Executive Director
EERY ERERE

YIP Yun Wan, Amarantha*?
Executive Director

FEHE*? gus

CHAN Wai Mun?
Manager, Financial Education Centre

PRESN. BHREHOEE

Hong Kong Federation of Insurers HUI Kam Hwai*
BRREEKS Deputy Chairman

FFEE* Bl

LAU Pui Ling, Selina?3
Chief Executive

BI{mIC 23 7B 4EEs

LEUNG Mai Ki24
Senior Manager - Communications and Committee

PRI BREE — EAREH
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Members Z8

Organisation #E4&i8 Name %4

Hong Kong Monetary Authority CHAN Wai Man, Darryl*s
EHLSEEIER Executive Director (External)
BRAER *5 mhEmms ohE)

SO Ka Pik, Linda*®
Executive Director (Corporate Services)

BRIRE *° BB (MIBIRREE)

LI Chun Kit, Patrick2
Senior Manager (Education & Publicity)

R BREE (RERED)

Hong Kong Police Force WONG Chi Kwong*
EHBEIELE Chief Superintendent, Commercial Crime Bureau

BEN* BEREREREER

CHAN Ching Sum, Kattie?
Chief Inspector, Anti-Deception Coordination Centre,
Commercial Crime Bureau

BREFID A BERRAEREER

HO Kam Yee, Michael®
Chief Inspector, Senior Police Call, Police Public Relations Branch

fAEER 2 BERAHMARMEER

Insurance Authority CHEUNG Wan Ching, Clement*
RIGEETH Chief Executive Officer

REE* TS

WONG Yuk Ping”

Senior Manager, Market Conduct Division

EEFA BigTAMERCE

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority n CHENG Yan Chee*
BEENTED R EIRE Chief Corporate Affairs Officer and Executive Director

EREEG * RS T ES

HO Fu Ho, Jonathan?
Director (External Affairs)

SRS TE (WHER)

Securities and Futures Commission ALDER, Ashley*
R A EIREL ST S e Chief Executive Officer

BUES * TR

KNEEBONE, David Phillip?

General Manager, Investor and Financial Education Council

EEE L BEEREMYEEERRKE

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking CESAR, Diana*
Corporation Limited Group General Manager, Chief Executive Hong Kong
& L ELETERAD AR * EEAKEREERTRAR

LI, Dora?

Head of Future Skills, Corporate Sustainability,
Asia Pacific Region

N BAEKRRRANE CEATIHEARE
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration
BRINEE

Members £8

Organisation %8418 Name 4

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited LI Ling Cheung, Raymond*
IR EERAT Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

FOH* gTERREE

LEUNG Sze Wan, Angela®
Vice President (Marketing and Business Development)

RIFEES BlRE (EHEERER)

Visa Hong Kong Limited STEINEBACH, Maaike*
Visa BEBERAT General Manager - Hong Kong and Macau

SPEEIH* EEemE — FERRME

TSUI Ki Nan2
Head of Corporate Communications —
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REEL BRI (LG — B8 RFIRAEME

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals SU Yau On, Albert*
RE=[x Chief Executive

BRThEL* fTIeEE

CHAN Fuk Lung?
Supervisor, Healthy Budgeting Family Debt Counselling Centre

PRIERES REEMRESREHOROEE

Investor and Financial Education Council YIP, Damian (Secretary)
BEENIEMHEEaS Head of Marketing and Programmes
EEH (WE) gettinsste

* Sponsor representative 3 From 14 August 2019 to 18 February 2020
HEAx 201988140 E2020F2818H

A4 Coordinator representative “ From 19 February 2020
BBRAR H20205F2H819HE

' From 14 August 2019 to 30 September 2019 5 From 14 August 2019 to 17 February 2020
H2019F8814HE20194F9H830H H2019F8B14HE2020F2H17H

2 From 1 October 2019 ¢ From 18 February 2020
H2019F1081HE H20205F2H18HiE

In addition, 110 organisations have pledged their support of the  Itb9h » TME 1O MIEEEE (BB EENNE) 5
Strategy by signing the Financial Literacy Charter and EIESERR > WAEE

committing to
RARNTEIZFMBENEEZMRITH
raising awareness of the importance of financial literacy

TERBHRMABMAE THR

providing financial education in their services

RB RS TEBEENHE

championing financial education to policy makers

BETE
HEE ) 2 NEMAEN RIS IR ER 2 — ©

Advocacy work

Advocacy is one of the strategic focuses of the Financial

Literacy Strategy. BRFEMEST/NE (F5/)VE) 112019%F6
B28HERBEAXMG » i/ N2RENTE
BEAABRALTRR

On 28 June 2019, the Task Force on Review of School
Curriculum (Task Force) released its consultation document to
solicit views on its initial recommendations on the primary and
secondary curricula.
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As it was felt that the initial view of the Task Force and the
current curricula did not fully take into account the need for
financial education among schoolchildren, the IFEC and 29
supporting organisations of the Strategy submitted a joint
response, which advocated that more prominence be given to
financial literacy in the curricula.

The IFEC also submitted its own detailed response during the
consultation, as well as its views on the importance of financial
literacy and financial education, to the 2019 Policy Address
public consultation.

The IFEC shared its view with Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (HKEX) on the Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) reporting requirements for listed
companies, noting that the financial well-being of employees
deserves attention. Taking this into consideration, HKEX
incorporated the idea of employees’ mental health, including
financial wellness, in its guidance on ESG reporting published
in March 2020.

Hong Kong Financial Competency
Framework 2019

As different societies and people at different life stages require
different financial competencies, in 2015 we appointed a
research team from The Education University of Hong Kong to
develop the first version of the Financial Competency
Framework (FCF) that addresses financial education needs
specific to Hong Kong.

The FCF identifies a set of attitudes, motivations, knowledge,
skills, and behaviours required for financial literacy. It can be
used by organisations such as government bodies,
policymakers, NGOs, financial institutions and education
providers interested in offering financial education as an
integral part of their services. In 2019, building on the original
framework, the FCF was updated and extended to include the
kindergarten stage.

BEREE/NMENTS ERRERINRESRE
EEHEEFENEVHERE  AtRETHE
295 MEERABE I SRBE ) BRI B IR X E (D]

& > REEFREFOLEEMENNEEN] -

REZGTMEAHIABE S TR — M MEE
WHL2019F (IR E) N ARBHARERR -
R IRRARE N BRI B BN E R -

sk > REEMEBRZFIT LT QB

NRIE - HEMNERELR I REBRKREER >
EHEENMBRBEZMER - Bt > &8
RHPTMF R EENOIBRE (SR HER)
MA2020 3B AMBI(IRIE ~ HEMEEER
HEHESDES -

HREBMEENLZE2019

HRARAENFHRIAFRRENEMENER
TR > REGR2015FEEEBHBE A0
KERRSI S —RHEBIEMEEIRE - UHE
EERENEMHERE -

R RESBRIER BE D PRRER R - B3
RRE ~ B0~ RO BBERITAEZE » UM
ARRHEMBBEINRHERB P MAEMEE T
FEVEABRER  BIMNBATEE(L ~ BRERHEIRAS -
RS - SRRBRBERBEE o IR
2019 F EMFEHIERE » MR HEBAE 2
EIPEER o

As a guide for content development,

@ implementation and evaluation, our FCF
plays a pivotal role in support of financial
education in Hong Kong.
BEBEMEENRERHIE
155 EXREREMBE L EREEEAE

BITHEEMEEN
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration
BRINEE

Financial Education Champion B ELR

The IFEC established the Financial Education Champion (FEC) BEEH 2018 F %7 NTEMHE R, » UKRIEH
award in 2018 to recognise the awardees that have enhanced A IBIA B IS o SINIEIENES TTEE

financial education in Hong Kong. As a prerequisite for BEF SRS | BT IS IS o
applying for the FEC, an organisation must be one of the
supporting organisations of the Financial Literacy Strategy. BESH2019F 11 B 20 BRTHESEEHIE » =5F

BB - RRBENFI00REELE
RE42BEHESEM BB FHE N RERBIE
1B (FI—FR340) » Hp/ EREEERRN
MERHER - E8 ) 8IE > URGHENLE
MEE BRI > WEDFEEITTE o

On 20 November 2019, the FEC held an award presentation
ceremony to honour the awardees. Around 100 guests
attended the ceremony, which recognised 42 organisations for
their initiatives in financial education (up from 34 the year
before). Of those, 6 received the new Financial Education
Champion — Quality Award (FEC-Q). To be recognised, the A S R A R RIS 2 5 B

B =
FEC-Q awardees provided evidence that an evaluation had . .
VIRRARE HEWBEIZ &>
been conducted to assess the effectiveness of their FE BRMR ARG B EAFIN R

. ; . ' BEHEREE  ARAREEBZRSIE > 78
initiatives and made a commitment to monitor their T 2 1 5 N
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. SEMABLRERMERM

While the awarded organisations come from different sectors BEERS TEIOERIE g

and ba'ckgrounds,jchey all Tc,hare.the. same VISIOH. and BB G ARG E BRI > TR
commitment to raise the financial literacy level in Hong Kong. L
RFHENSERHRUEN G T ES BT SR

This is particularly important because it is only through o . ot
4 S > =, gz
collaboration that financial education can be more pervasive BHMEEE > wEXARFRE RO R
@t

and effective. EEn

IFEC named a Caring Organisation

At the IFEC, we support certain stakeholders with their
financial education initiatives. Our efforts to assist our
stakeholders and partners were recognised by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service, which named us a “Caring
Organisation” for the first time.

We support stakeholders in delivering
quality financial education to ethnic

minorities.
HMZFHHNEALVE RS A TREEEN
BRIHE o

U-n” FEC award presentation ceremony.
NIRRT B 52 ) NALRERLE o
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Research and Evaluation NZ
b 5% B 5

We recognise that in order to provide effective
financial education programmes, we must first
understand the needs of our target audiences.

To that end, we undertake regular reviews of our
initiatives, invite feedback on our work and examine
the impact of our programmes so that we can
improve upon them.

REZGHRERUMERNEMBEE > AKX THEER
HENFE - [t > KM TEHRAZEEMBEES -

FEHIRAE o

We also conduct regular financial literacy surveys (and
participate in international studies), study topics of interest
among our target audiences, and run an academic research
grant programme.

Our research and evaluation work focuses on three areas:

1. Monitoring financial literacy levels
and consumer behaviour

In the 2019/20 year, we conducted the second wave of our
Retail Investor Study to monitor the attitudes and behaviour of
Hong Kong retail investors. The findings indicated a growing
tendency among investors, especially younger ones, to aim for
quick profits. What we also discovered is that many of them
lack the discipline to conduct research based on primary
sources before investing and instead rely on advice from
friends and family. Only half of the respondents referred to
product information from primary sources.

Another survey, in May 2019, among parents with primary
schoolchildren showed that Hong Kong's “sandwich
generation” (people who provide care and support to their
parents and children) feel they are under more financial stress
than the previous generation. They indicated that their
children’s educational expenses are one of the major causes of
this stress, along with the family’s living expenses and
provisions for their own retirement. Many parents said they
were also willing to support their adult children in the future
with wedding expenses and even home purchases. We
concluded that more of our financial education efforts should

TRARHEFPLENNE » LERBIRIRR > FK

KL EERMNERIBEM A BMEENETRE
(12 HERAE) » AREEZRREBNE
VA S = b

REGNMREFEITFEZAER

1. B2 E R IR BA R R AN BE S 7K F
BHBRETR
KME201920 FETTE (T ASTEREE
BZE)  UBEREATEREENEEMITS °
MEARBRURASRERIBRATRER
R BREE WAL o IZEIRNEIRAID ZHE
EREMITERBE—FENRRTHRNEE
o ERAKERENES  EEFEZHEES
EZRBE—FENALRBENEREM

S—IER 20195 5 B ETHREUE B NETF
ZHREAHR  AEERBERABHN =08
) (BIRNERENRLEBRXEMTZH—
) » EERAE O E—EmEFEANMEBE
71 o MPRRFRHHERE - REEFHI R
HOWEARREERIENEIRER » BLELRE
B F2 B RRERBRRE R ETF LN
BiERY » HEBXE - RN > BFIRAEZ

RAENEMHEEREE2019-20FK
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Research and Evaluation
A N

be directed towards the sandwich generation, particularly with
programmes that help them make plans for their own
retirement and teach their children about money
management.

In 2015, we participated in a 30-economy comparison of
financial literacy levels coordinated by the OECD International
Network on Financial Education (OECD/INFE). In 2019, the
OECD/INFE announced another cross-country comparison
exercise using the same survey tool. The IFEC once again took
part in this exercise and completed the data collection in the
last quarter of 2019. The survey findings revealed that Hong
Kong adults have shown improvements in financial literacy,
bolstered by better financial knowledge, and stronger attitude
scores compared with four years ago. However, it was also
noted that financial behaviour scores were weaker.

2. Evaluating the effectiveness of
our work

During the year, we continued to evaluate our financial
education programmes and added three new reports:

1. Blended-learning: Investment workplace programme
2. Digital Financial Services Workshop for retirees
3. Health & Wealth 2 programme for retirees

The evaluation surveys conducted before and after the
programmes showed an appreciable gain in knowledge and
an attitude shift, as well as areas for further improvement.

We also conducted regular surveys to track public awareness
and perceptions of our major education initiatives.

3. Supporting academic research

The IFEC concluded the 2018/19 funding round for research in
financial education and confirmed funding for a research
project on financial planning for seniors in later life. This project
is being undertaken by researchers from the Sau Po Centre on
Ageing and the Faculty of Law of the University of Hong Kong.

Another research project funded by the IFEC, A Study of
Investor Motivations and Fraud, was completed in December
2019. This project examined investment fraud cases recorded
by the Hong Kong Police Force, with the objective of
identifying how vulnerable or at-risk groups made decisions
when presented with fraudulent investment schemes.
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ABEATRUESSRIEMHBESE » Fh=
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REGBR2015F2RAEESFRERER/
B ERIZM B ERE (KSEM/ERERIE
P EEK) ETHNRESE > LERIOERERNE
RRIZRF RIS BESIKT o IEEAEM/ B RIE
B REER2019FERUR—ERETLRE
THR—REELE > RATERSERE > WK
2019 F BMFTEMBERE - HEERETE
BREANZRIEMABANEENBAE - thif]
PERIERM MBENEET DAL OFRS > B17
P AN T B o

2. A TR

BAEERFETESREVHEE > WHHE
ZIERE

1. TEE2IER | %5 BStE
2. ARIRALMR EEEM SR
3. SHEPRRIKA TR TRERER 21 518

TEEATET BRI REITRISTL T > 2B ETH
SRR RREIDEIRR A - B RRE TGP
o SHEERINR RSB R 28RV o

RPTERETRAE » TRARHREEIEHN
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Retail Investor Study 2019
BEATEREHEMFT2019
A study on retail investing found that the key source of information

influencing retail investors’ trading decisions came from secondary
sources rather than their own research.

When making trading decisions, advice from friends/family (82%) and

financial news in the media (78%) were the top two information sources.

Primary information sources such as listed companies’ annual reports
(46%) and corporate announcements (28%) were less frequently
referenced.

—EERZEREENMALN  RESFHREATREIEZR_FEMN > MIEBIT
REERER

MPEHIEERER > TERBRARIRANER (82%) MEERFEHE (78%) »
MRD2E LHATEIR (46%) AT NE (28%) EFE—FEMKE ©

Key information sources influencing trading decisions
FERERENEEEMNRR

X

Media
3%

Financial news

BAARARR

TV/radio financial programmes
EBR/EARMEHE

Analytical articles in newspapers/magazines
AR/ MR DT E

Analysis/sharing on websites/social media
HBUL /AL RIRRE FIDT/ D E

Friends/family
AR/RA

Securities brokers/bank staff
RSB/ RITIRE

Listed companies’ reports/announcements
LHARRE/ A%

Annual reports/financial statements

F] /MK

Corporate announcements/notices
ABRE/BH

)

Y/

Word-of-mouth
- 93
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A new chapter in life
BEAAEH—H

David is a 65-year-old retiree who is adapting to
life after retirement. He has begun his new
journey by maintaining a simple lifestyle and
growing and protecting his wealth. He believes
that keeping financially, physically and mentally
healthy is the key to a happy retirement.

SE65DavidB

kB BEROR R ESE > 1R

ﬁ BREAMET > WiEE

[/ e - EREAME o thiBfE

() o RIFMTER GO

4 B AEESHERDL
N, E|EMBRKEE o







Working with Stakeholders and Partners
HFNEMBHEEZSHE

133322, 2. The IFEC seeks opportunities to collaborate
Seee . with stakeholders in Hong Kong and abroad so
t that we can improve the delivery of our
$ 2 financial education initiatives and adopt best
33500 : practices for promoting financial literacy.

: __ REZGHEBSKETEEBNEBIMHIEMRS(E
: £ : e BREEAMIBTEMBEED > BIRMRENTT A
RAEMEES -

) © ¢
DO ¢
=2

The stakeholders we engage and collaborate with include KPNESIER L EIEBATIET « SREE - HE
government bodies, financial and educational institutions, P ~ LIS ~ RENITEAS o
NGOs and professional and industry bodies.

HMTRRE ZEEH AN —ERERENES

A number of Advisory Groups and a Research Grant & MAEERYNEE BRI EEN
Committee have been set up to seek advice from various HEEH  RATEEBNSRA RS o

groups in formulating our financial education initiatives,
research needs and collaboration opportunities.
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Advisory Group:
Financial Education for Schoolchildren

Members £8

Name % Organisation 18418

LI, Dora (Convenor)

BERMEEERE

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

=itk (BEAN) Corporation Limited
5B S ESRITERAT
FONG, Wayne Citi
Fig TEEEE
Dr HO Yuk Fan, Esther Hong Kong Association of Careers Masters and
fAIEFEL Guidance Masters

ERAWHEHEMGE

HSIAO Chun Mo, Moses

Ning Po No. 2 College

iR ERE R

KONG Siu Cheuk, Edward Education Bureau

THRE BER

KWOK Chi Kay, Peter Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui

g E = HEERE

KWOK Chiu Kwan, Henry Hong Kong Aided Primary School
ZREBEE Heads Association

EBEPNERRE

Dr LAM Wai Lim, William

Education Bureau

R BETE L BER

LIN, Chun Pong HK Association of the Heads of Secondary Schools
EEF BEEPERES

POON Tak Cheong, Raymond Committee on Home-School Co-operation

BES REHZREIFEEELZEE

SIN, Anthony Hong Kong Family Welfare Society

RS EERERENS

YIP, Damian (Ex-officio Member) Investor and Financial Education Council

ESH0H (BERER) REENEMHEEZES

LAM Kit Yung, Stefan (Secretary)
WEE (WE)

Investor and Financial Education Council

REENEVHERES

The appointment term is from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2019.

EHAR2018 F 4 B1HE2019F 128318 ©

RAENEMHEEREE2019-20FK
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners
BN ERBERESE

Advisory Group:

Financial Education for Tertiary Students

Members £8

RKESREBUHE HNE

Name ¥4 Organisation ##1&4 18

Dr NG Wai Cheong, Artie (Convenor)
REEHELT (BEAN)

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
School of Professional Education and
Executive Development

BERETABEREESR

CHAN Fuk Lung
R1ERE

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Healthy Budgeting
Family Debt Counselling Centre

RE=[RERIEM K EHER L

Dr CHAN Yiu Kong

School of Professional and Continuing Education,

FRYBYCIE L The University of Hong Kong
ERARBHEEES

HO Ka Man Manulife (International) Limited

fAIEE RHAFFRE (EF) BRAE

HUI, Vincent (to 31 July 2019) The Bank of East Asia, Limited

P E (22019478 31H1E) RORITERAE

LAI Leung Ho, Niki St. James’ Settlement

BRYF PR

Dr LAM Po Yan, Pamela Li Ka Shing School of Professional

MEEEL and Continuing Education,

The Open University of Hong Kong
BERNHASRETZNEREEBS R

Dr LAM Wai Keung, Wallace

Vocational Training Council

wiEssEL B4R/

Dr LAM Wai Leung Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
mHEREL G

LAU Pui Ling, Selina Hong Kong Federation of Insurers

2mie ERREmERS

LEE Siu Po The Chinese University of Hong Kong

FIKK BAEPKE

WONG Ni Nau, Shirley (from 1 August 2019) The Bank of East Asia, Limited

=R (R201948 A10#E) REIRITERAT

YEUNG Nga Yuk

Working Family and Student Financial

BHEE Assistance Agency
EHRERPLEEBETE

YIP, Damian (Ex-officio Member) Investor and Financial Education Council

RS (BRZEE8) KREENBMHELZES

YAU Kwan Pang (Secretary) Investor and Financial Education Council

EREEMS (FEE) KEENEMHELES

The appointment term is from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2019.
1EHAR2018 54 B1HE 20195128318 °
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Advisory Group:
Financial Education for Working Adults

Members £8

ERALTERAE S

Name % Organisation 18418

CHING Pui Yuk (Convenor) The Women's Foundation

BhE (BEA) HREEE

CHAN Yiu Lun, Alan Hong Kong Family Welfare Society

PR 2 et EARAREENE

CHAN Yuen Ling (from 1 November 2018) Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
BRIGEES (20181181 0#E) BHEIEABEHEIER

CHOW Lai Sim, Florence
[AREE

Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong

ERRIMES

Dr LAW Ming Fai, Ben (to 16 May 2019)
ZZPRfEIE L (20195816 L)

The University of Hong Kong
BAEKE

LEE Ming Gin Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong
ZFERIE BEARAYBREMES
LEE Oi Yen Construction Industry Council
FHR BiEEEe
LI Tin Kei, Dave Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource
FREE Management

BEREANNEREESSG

Dr SIU Mei Fung, Gloria

Gain Miles Group

i BRreEEE

WONG Sau Yee The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
B5EE EESERHE

WONG Yuk Ping Insurance Authority

EFEFE RBEEER

YUNG Lai Ping

Caritas Family Crisis Line and Education Centre

REmEHCREGRATHO

YIP, Damian (Ex-officio Member)

B2 (ERE8)

Investor and Financial Education Council

REENREMHERER

LAU Wing Kam (Secretary)
B3 (1 3E)

Investor and Financial Education Council

REENREBMHEERES

The appointment term is from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2019.

EHAR2018 F 4 B1HE2019F 128318 ©

RAENEMHEEREE2019-20FK
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners

BRNERBHERSE

Advisory Group:
Financial Education for Retirees

Members &8

Name ## Organisation H#8%1E

CHAN Man Yee, Grace (Convenor)
BRXE (B&EA)

BEALEBRHEHHNDE

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

BERLERBME

CHAN How Chi

Committee on Elder Academy

BRE= Development Foundation
RESNHERESZES

Dr CHAN Mou Fung Noble Apex Advisors Limited

MRyt ISR B IRAE

HO Chung Yan, David -

fAIER

HO Kam Yee, Michael (from 27 August 2018)
{A3284 (201848 27 BE)

Police Public Relations Branch,
Hong Kong Police Force

BEREHRERQHMER

HO Mei Yee
(BES

The Salvation Army
M=

Professor LAl Wing Leung, Daniel
Rk SZHIE

Institute of Active Ageing,
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
BABTAEER PR

LAU Ka Shi
EIELS

BCT Group (BCT Financial Limited/
Bank Consortium Trust Company)

BCT iRt @ (R ERERAR /IRBHEFTEHERAR)

LEUNG Sze Wan, Angela

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

RESEE BRRIBESERAR

LIM Ka Yuk, Paul Hang Seng Bank

HEREE 1B RIT

WONG Lai Choi Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui
=R Welfare Council Limited

BERENGENHEERAE

YEUNG Ming Yin

Happy-Retired Company Limited

i SRR

YIP, Damian (Ex-officio Member) Investor and Financial Education Council
B (BERER) KEENEVHEEREY

CHOI Suk Mun, Anny (Secretary) Investor and Financial Education Council
e (W) KEENEMHEEREY

The appointment term is from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2019.

1EHAER2018 5 E 4 B1HE 20194128318 ©
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Research Grant Committee

Members Z8
Name 4

MAEHESS

Organisation #1518

KNEEBONE, David Phillip (Chairperson)
=1EE (XFF)

Investor and Financial Education Council

REENEVHEZES

ATKINSON, Adele

OECD International Network on
Financial Education

Professor CHENG W.W., Joseph
ERE R

Department of Finance, CUHK Business School,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong
ERPNAEEBREMBR

CHIU Chi Fai, William
(from 16 December 2019)
BEHE (H20195 12816 AE)

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

B LBESRITERAR

LEUNG T. W.,, Tracy
RRIR

Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui
Welfare Council Limited
BEEENEENHERRAR

TO Wing Yan, Elizabeth
(to 9 September 2019)
HEARR (Z20194£9 89 A1)

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited
&E L BESIRITERAT

Professor TSE, S.K., Samson

Department of Social Work and Social
Administration, The University of Hong Kong

ERERBHETERMETHER

The appointment term is from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2021.

EHAR2018 F 4 B1HE20214F3H831H
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners
BB ERBHEESE

Local and international exchanges

During the year, we maintained close contact with local and
international stakeholders and partners.

In July 2019, we participated in a panel session at the Child
Development Fund “Step Up 7 Life Guiding” project kick-off
ceremony. The panel was an opportunity to discuss how
matching funds could help participants achieve their financial
goals and why financial education is necessary for building
positive long-term financial habits.

In September, we were invited by the Financial Education
Centre of the Hong Kong Family Welfare Society to speak at
their Financial Social Work Certification training workshop on
how to embed financial education into their service delivery.

During the year, we also continued collaborating with our
counterparts in mainland China on issues of mutual interest
and to strengthen our relationships.

Internationally, we continued to learn from the best practices
of our overseas counterparts during our exchanges with them
throughout the year. These included the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development International
Network on Financial Education (OECD/INFE) and the
International Organization of Securities Commissions (IOSCO)
Committee on Retail Investors (Committee 8).

OECD/INFE

Since its establishment in 2008, the OECD/INFE has been
promoting and facilitating international co-operation among
policy makers and other stakeholders on financial education.
Some 260 public institutions from over 120 countries have
joined this network.

In May 2019, the IFEC participated in the FSCA-OECD 2019
International Conference on Financial Education in Cape Town,
South Africa. Under the theme of “Financial Education of the
Future”, the conference examined ways that tech innovation,
effective policy-making and better financial education can
converge to improve the economic and social well-being of
people around the world.

In October 2019, our representative gave a speech at a global
symposium on financial education, “Aiming high: financial
education for short-term needs and long-term goals”,
co-hosted by OECD INFE and the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Brazil.
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Head of Marketing and Programmes of the IFEC,
% Mr Damian Yip, discussed with social workers

from different NGOs on how to embed financial

education into their service delivery.

BEBHE T RAE T EEIRAE R RELEEEN

HITHZMEHE RS HE R AL FARTS o

EREECAREDER

IOSCO Committee 8

- o R s Sl
high: clal pdur
h :er%n:mu:ﬂkfmﬁqﬁ!;

e,

Head of Commmunications and Resources of the
IFEC, Ms Jill Tan, at a global symposium on
financial education held in Brazil.
KRERENRAEERFTERERL L EERAERERIK
ERIBMBEMAR o

ﬁ The Core Competencies Framework on
Financial Literacy for Investors. A Chinese
version was also produced for Hong Kong.

(REEZIEMBENIRAE) TR B PR -

B e M C8EET

As a member of the Committee 8, the IFEC is a prominent REZEEACSZEGHNE B —ERBIIFE

contributor of the group’s initiatives. During the year, the

BEENIF - FREESEEETRREESE

committee continued to conduct IOSCO's policy work on retail s AR S ERESNEE TIE > FESEN

investor education and to advise the IOSCO Board on
emerging investor protection matters and policies.

To support the development and implementation of

investor education initiatives across various jurisdictions, in

REEREZENBRROEFIESERESS
RHEER -

ARF AR FEEENELEBREENF
) EFEESESRESEMSE > ARkE

conjunction with OECD we led an IOSCO working group to

develop the Core Competencies Framework on Financial

Literacy for Investors.

BRAE—ELENMARE (REEZOERAE
ZRiB) o

In April 2019, we attended the Committee 8 meeting in Spain HFIRR2019% 4 AHREFARFRITHCBER

and another meeting in November 2019 in Germany.
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Directors’ Report
EFERES

The directors present herewith their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020.

Principal place of business

Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at 21/F,
Cheung Kong Center, 2 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the IFEC are to lead financial literacy
in Hong Kong by promoting and delivering free and impartial
financial education resources and programmes to equip
people with the skills to make well-informed financial
decisions; the IFEC leads the Financial Literacy Strategy to
create a conducive environment for stakeholders to deliver
more quality financial education to various segments of the
Hong Kong population.

Financial statements

The financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2020
and the financial position as at 31 March 2020 are set out in the
audited financial statements presented on pages 70 to 84.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

HUANG, Lester Garson (Chairman)

AUYEUNG Pak Kuen, Rex

CHAN Wai Man (Retired on 18 February 2020)

CHENG Yan Chee (Retired on 8 May 2019)

CHEUNG Wan Ching, Clement

HO Fu Ho, Jonathan (Appointed on 26 August 2019)
KNEEBONE, David Phillip

LAU Man Man, Lisa

LEUNG Sze Ho, Louis (Appointed on 9 December 2019)
SO Ka Pik, Linda (Appointed on 18 February 2020)
WAN Chi Yiu, Andrew

WONG Ming Wai, Winnie (Retired on 9 December 2019)
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Indemnity of directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
directors of the IFEC is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Except for a contract of employment with Mr David Phillip
Kneebone, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the IFEC, or any of its holding company
or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
IFEC had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PwC as auditors of the IFEC is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

HUANG, Lester Garson
15 May 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Investor and Financial Education Council

38 3L % BT ¥R
M REEREMAETEZERNNRE

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)
(EB BRI RERAE)

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Investor and Financial Education
Council (IFEC) set out on pages 70 to 84, which comprise:

- the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020;

- the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended,;

- the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

- the notes to the financial statements, which included a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of IFEC as at 31 March 2020,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (HKSAS) issued by the HKICPA. Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in

the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of IFEC in accordance with the HKICPA's

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code), and we

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,

in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing IFEC's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate IFEC or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Investor and Financial Education Council

BN S
RREEREMHFTEZEETHNE

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)
(EEBEMAIIIERERAE)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of IFEC's
internal control.
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- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on IFEC's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause IFEC to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 May 2020
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B K H fth 2 U R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE2020F 33 HILFE (BT : Eio)

N, 2020 2019
Wizt $ $
Income KA
Recoveries from the Securities and REFSMIAEEHEE
Futures Commission 2(d) 71,214,638 ZEgREIIE
Ié;;;nses 777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 s
Premises expenses MAZEMT
Rent 2,880,000 ke
Rates, management fees and others 456,245 =i EEENHEM
Staff costs 4 25,783,650 AEEHH
Education programmes 5 38,721,480 HEIER
Other expenses 6 3,331,719 Hithx H
Depreciation 7 41,544 e
71,214,638
Result for the year before taxation - - FEGOESE
Taxation 3 - R\
Result and total comprehensive income
for the year - FEXEREZEIALLEE

The notes on pages 73 to 84 form part of these financial
statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

MEBRRT

As at 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

#2020&E3831H (81 : #T)

NEie 2020 2019
i $ $
Non-current assets JERENEE
Fixed assets 7 76,862 EE&E
Currentassets nwEE 000
Prepayments and other receivables 8 395,558 FE{T I8 R Eh FE W FRIE
Cash at bank and in hand 22,079,019  RITKEEFERS
22,474,577
Current liabilities L
Accrued charges and other payables 9 15,905,523  fEtERANEMECEIE
Balance with the Securities and HESNIEEHER
Futures Commission 9 6,645,916 ZEBHFIA
22,551,439
Net current liabilities (76,862) mEIGE(EFEE
Total assets less current liabilites - - AEGEAAHAR
Net assets - HBEHE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
15 May 2020 and signed on its behalf by

HUANG, Lester Garson

Chairman

The notes on pages 73 to 84 form part of these financial

statements.

WAN Chi Yiu, Andrew

Director

1R2020F 5815 HHEERIZERFFAI#H
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Statement of Cash Flows

RERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HZE2020F 3831 HIEFE (81 : Bt)

2020 2019
$ $
Cash flows from operating activities EXEEHMMSIRNRERE
Result for the year - FExS
Depreciation 41,544 TE

Increase in prepayments and
other receivables

Increase in balance with the Securities
and Futures Commission

(Decrease) / increase in accrued charges
and other payables

(265,365)  FAITRRIA K H M FEKRIRAYIE AN
HESMAEEHEREER

4,749,822 BYFRIEHIHE AN
FESHE A N ELfth FE (SR IBRY
5,513,018 R /180

Net cash (used in) / generated from
operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Fixed assets purchased

10,039,019 (AH)/BEBEEDNRSFHR

REFBFSIBRNRERE
(83241) MBABEEE

Net cash used in investing activities

(83,241) RARKREZBNVREZFHE

Net (decrease) / increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

RERZFRRFEEER GBD)/
9,955,778 HEINEER

12123241 FERBHEENERREER

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

22,079,019 FEKLERBAEREFRBREIRE

Analysis of the balance of cash
and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

RERERBAEABBNGETRI N
22,079,019 RITREFRE

The notes on pages 73 to 84 form part of these financial
statements.

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2019-20

B73EEE 84 BN B AT RRERDN
—&Bay o



Notes to the Financial Statements
B FEER R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE2020F 33 HILFE (B : Bx)

1. Status and principal activities

Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC) was
incorporated on 19 October 2012 in Hong Kong under the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance as a company limited
by guarantee and not having a share capital. The address
of its registered office is 21/F, Cheung Kong Center,

2 Queen'’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the IFEC are to lead financial
literacy in Hong Kong by promoting and delivering
free and impartial financial education resources and
programmes to equip people with the skills to make
well-informed financial decisions; the IFEC leads the
Financial Literacy Strategy to create a conducive
environment for stakeholders to deliver more quality
financial education to various segments of the

Hong Kong population.

Under the provisions of the IFEC's Articles of Association,
every member shall, in the event of the IFEC being wound
up, contribute to the assets of the IFEC an amount not
exceeding $10. At 31 March 2020, the IFEC had 1 member.

2. Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. Significant accounting policies adopted by the
IFEC are set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the IFEC. Note 2(n) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the IFEC for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

The IFEC has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

(a)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAE5ER R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE2020F3A31HLLEE (81 : Bim)

2.
(b)

(c)

(d)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation

The IFEC prepares these financial statements on a going
concern basis notwithstanding that the stated current
liabilities are in excess of the stated current assets at

31 March 2020. The Securities and Futures Commission
(SFQ), the ultimate holding entity, has given an
undertaking to continue to provide such financial
assistance as is necessary to maintain the IFEC as a
going concern.

We have prepared these financial statements using the
historical cost as the measurement basis. No statement of
changes in equity has been prepared as there have been
no changes during the year.

We prepare the financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs require management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. We make estimates and associated
assumptions based on historical experience and various
other factors that believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

We review the estimates and underlying assumptions on
an ongoing basis. We recognise revisions to accounting
estimates in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Recognition of income

We recognise income in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the IFEC and we
can measure reliably the revenue and cost.

Recoveries from the SFC

The IFEC’'s income is reimbursement from the SFC for
expenditure incurred. We recognise recoveries from the
SFC on an accrual basis.

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2019-20

2.
(b)

(c)

(d)

FEFHEE @

BER 202093 B 31 HAF LAY RED
BEBAMIHNRESEE > £E2BNMU
FHESEEERUARIZRRE - REEH
REERERESNPEEHEREEY
(BED) BXKEEE EERNRMHEMEK
BB MRS SHEEE -

KFIUEE R AR ENEERRAR TS
}E o ANFEAREET HEEERE
8> FEERMALRESTHEEZEIHRE

HPIUFE (EBMBREZER) 095 R
SUAMFRE > BRI > BEERTEELA
B ~ st RER > MZEHIE - et R
REZEBRNEAUKRPTERNEE -
B8~ WA KRSHEHEE - ZEfhEt R
FRREREBRMABENERNEZEFR
M EEAGENSEHMERFLE
FRS 45 R E AL B 7R AEBR R AL H th 23R
ESHYH & Z R & EpIIRE (EFH FIERY
&5 - BRERAGERINZEFMGE o

RPIFHEBIZFREE st RARRIRR - (1E
sHESTREST R EER - RFIERER

RAERMET ; MEHESHEETHER
RAREEELE > AAERERKR
RIRHEAFEIFESD B RMERT -

U A BYFESD

BB DB REERAREZS
[EEAREIESE=1EL 6 da%: N (S T EE:S)
STER > RAPESERTMAEMEEWE
RAFEDHRAWA °

8 B F U BRI FRIR
REZGHNRADEEEMERRNMX
PRAYIERIFRIR o FFIRIRAESH BRI
BEFUWEIRFRIEA



2.
(e)

(f)

(9)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits

We accrue salaries and allowances, paid annual leave and
contributions to defined contribution plans in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by employees.

Fixed assets and depreciation

We state fixed assets at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (see note 2(l)).
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. We charge
depreciation to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives as follows:

- Furniture and fixtures Syears
- Office equipment Syears
- Personal computers and software 3years

We capitalise subsequent expenditure only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
fixed assets. We recognise all other expenditure in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an expense as incurred.

We recognise gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of fixed assets, being the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item, in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on the date of retirement
or disposal.

We review the assets’ residual values and useful lives and
adjust if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, we
consider that the following are related parties of the IFEC:

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the IFEC if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the IFEC;

(i) hassignificant influence over the IFEC; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the IFEC or the IFEC's parent.

2.
(e)

(f)

(9)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAE5ER R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE2020F3A31HLLEE (81 : Bim)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the IFEC if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the IFEC are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the IFEC or an
entity related to the IFEC.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the IFEC or to the IFEC's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(h) Translation of foreign currencies

We translate foreign currency transactions during the year
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. We translate monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. We recognise exchange gains and losses
on translation in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
in hand.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Prepayments and other receivables

We state prepayments and other receivables initially at
their fair value and thereafter at amortised cost less
impairment losses. We holds the receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

We assess on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its financial instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

(k) Accrued charges and other payables

M

We state accrued charges and other payables initially at
fair values and thereafter at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be material, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Impairment of non-financial assets

We review the carrying amounts of the IFEC's assets at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is any objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, we estimate the asset's recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its net selling price and
value in use. We recognise in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the recoverable
amount as an impairment loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

We reverse an impairment loss in respect of an asset in a
subsequent period if the circumstances and events that
are objectively linked to the write down or write-off cease
to exist and there is persuasive evidence that the new
circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable
future. We reverse an impairment loss only to the extent
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that we should have determined, net of
depreciation and amortisation, if we had not recognised
any impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE2020F3A31HLLEE (81 : Bim)

2‘

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(n)

We recognise a provision in the statement of financial
position when the IFEC has a legal or constructive
obligation of uncertain timing or amount as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that the IFEC will require an
outflow of economic benefits to settle the obligation and
the amount can be estimated reliably.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, we disclose the obligation as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. We also disclose possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the IFEC. Except as described below, these
developments have had no material effect on how the
IFEC's results and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented.

HKFRS 16, Leases

The IFEC has applied HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. HKFRS 16
primarily affects the accounting as a lessee of leases for
properties which are classified as operating leases. The
IFEC applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The
IFEC has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is,
or contains a lease at the date of initial application.
Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition
date the IFEC relied on its assessment made applying
HKAS 17 and Interpretation 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease.

As at 31 March 2019, according to the licence agreement
with the SFC, the IFEC's total future minimum
non-cancellable lease payments for the six-month

early termination notice period was $1,650,000.

From 1 April 2019, lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. The adoption does not have any material
impact on the IFEC's results of operations and financial
position. Details of the IFEC's lease expense relating to a
short-term lease are set out in note 10.
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3.

Taxation

(@) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made as the IFEC did not have any taxable profit.

(b) There is no deferred tax liability or unrecognised
deferred tax assets.

Staff costs
2020

3. i1\
(a) HKBEHLEMEEHRAE > Bl
LR EREBRSIRIRER o

(b) RZEEUEEMELRESERNR
HESDRVEIETR IR E E o

4, \EEH

2019
$

Salaries and other benefits

Contributions to defined contribution plan

24,259,485  #FHEREMEF
1,524,165  HREMPREEIBIHR

25,783,650

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

RIBE B (RBEG) 5383(1) ER(AH
(RBEEEMZER) R F2WEIRE
EEMERENT ¢

2020 2019
$ $
Directors’ fees -  EEWEE
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,999,560  #&  REENEYA G
Discretionary bonuses 439,910 [SIEE il
Retirement scheme contributions 165,963 SEIRETE|HER
2,605,433
Education programmes 5. ¥&B1EH
2020 2019
$ $
Campaigns and commmunications 16,574,427  JEBEIAGEE

Digital and social channels development
and maintenance

Marketing programmes
Resources and content
Research and evaluation

Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy

BHE AR IR RS EEN
6,889,161 e NFRE

9,077,993  HBEEEINGE
256,700 EREAR
2,015,681  HAZHME
3,907,518  HEERIEI A HAE R

38,721,480
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAE5ER R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EHZE2020F 3831 HIEEE (B : BT)

6. Other expenses 6. Hfthszi
2020 2019
$ $
Auditor's remuneration 196,268 161,400  1ZEEMENE
Professional and other services 807,735 920,757 BENEMRFER
Publicity and external relations 684,262 677,753  EENHINEF
Information systems and services 1,838,371 1,368,408  &Hfl ARG MRS
General office and insurance 128,450 17,832 —HANERSZNREER
Training and development 142,859 85,569 Bl E R
3,797,945 3,331,719
7. Fixed assets 7. BEEE
Personal
Office computers
equipment  and software Total
WMRERE  EABRERRG Hast
$ $ $
Cost (5%
At 1 April 2019 13,666 1,232,371 1,246,037 K2019%F4H81H
Additions - - = RE
At 31 March 2020 13,666 1,232,371 1,246,037 $52020%F3H31H
Accumulated depreciation RREiRE
At 1 April 2019 12,340 1,156,835 1,169,175 H2019%F4H81H
Charge for the year 1,060 30,446 31,506 FEEIFE
At 31 March 2020 13,400 1,187,281 1,200,681 #K2020FE3H831H
Net book value IREEE
At 31 March 2020 266 45,090 45,356 20203 H831H
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7.

Fixed assets (continued) 7. @EEE (#8)
Personal
Office computers
equipment  and software Total
WAERE  (EASREREG 4Est
$ $ $
Cost RS
At 1 April 2018 13,666 1,149,130 1,162,796 72018%F481H
Additions - 83,241 83,241 NE
At 31 March 2019 2019438 31H
Accumulated depreciation REaRE
At 1 April 2018 11,280 1,116,351 1,127,631 72018%F 48 1H
Charge for the year 1,060 40,484 41,544 FETE
At 31 March 2019 2019438 31H
Net book value IR EFE
At 31 March 2019 2019438 31H
Prepayments and other receivables 8. FA(IFRIAK HthFEUFRIE
Prepayments and other receivables are unsecured, TR IE R EfthFEU R IE 2 EIEE « EF
non-interest bearing and repayable within one year from BN AERE QB —ERNEEM o
the reporting date.
9. FEtERKHREDRIE/HA

Accrued charges and other payables /
Balance with the Securities and
Futures Commission

All accrued charges and other payables are unsecured
and expected to be settled within one year.

Balance with the Securities and Futures Commission
represents funds transferred from the SFC to support the
IFEC's operation. The balance is unsecured and with no
repayment date.

EFEMIEEBERES AN
TRIR

PR FE st B A R LA (T FUE R IR
TEBE— B -

HESMAESEHEREE TN
AETARTREGUIFHE
B - BRAREANEIERNES

IERR
En
TRHARR ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE2020F3A31HLLEE (81 : Bim)

9. Accrued charges and other payables / 9.
Balance with the Securities and
Futures Commission (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities of the IFEC'’s current liabilities at the end of the
accounting period, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the IFEC

FEst & A R H fthFE (I Fh1E /
ESENIIEEBEERE TN
RIE (8)

TREFBE ISR R AR

RBRENTHGANIINEE > SRS
BENNKRTERSRBREERTA

) ERERGENRFEHER
can be required to pay:
2020
Within 3
months or
Carrying on demand No stated
amount 3{E B AEIHASE maturity
IRE(E  RERMERE(T wmEEEIHAR
$ $ $
Accrued charges and P&+ & A R EL
other payables FE{TTRIE
Balance with the Securities and BES MBS
Futures Commission EREBENFIE
2019
Within 3
months or
Carrying on demand No stated
amount 3fEHR A EIHAS maturity
IREE R EREER AT ERERIHAE
$ $ $
Accrued charges and FEET & A R E
other payables 15,905,523 15,905,523 = FE{IFRIE
Balance with the Securities and BES MBS
Futures Commission 6,645,916 - 6,645,916 B RGEENRIE
22,551,439 15,905,523 6,645,916
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10.

1.

Leases

From 1 April 2019, the IFEC has no right-of-use assets as all
leases are short-term in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, $3,300,000
(2019: $3,300,000) was paid to the SFC and included in
premises expense in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Related party transactions

There are related party relationships with the SFC, the
ultimate holding entity. In addition to the related parties
relationship disclosed in elsewhere in these financial
statements, the IFEC has the following related party
transactions.

During the year, the IFEC paid $384,000 (2019: $384,000)
accountancy service fee, $310,000 (2019: $310,000) human
resources and training support fees and $1,032,000

(2019: $1,032,000) website hosting and maintenance fees
to the SFC.

All members of key management personnel are directors
of the IFEC, and their remuneration is disclosed in note 4.

10.

1.

HE
H2019F4A1HIE  REGRBEHE
BE HAFREHEEEEHTEE -

EEHZE2020FE3A3HIEEER » 1
FREGT ABREREMEEKERA
HO# A ZE 75 52 B9 RRIE 5 3,300,000 7T
(20194 : 3,300,0007%) ©

FERRX%

REQUERREEBREESERE -
PR T E AR B AR E AR D IR EERIRAE
HRAES  REGERUT S REAES
R 5 o

FR - BEEARES NSRS E
#384,0007C (20194 : 384,0007T) *
ANERRIENZ &R E % 310,0007T (2019
£ 1 310,0007T) ~ PHRAERGEEES
1,032,0007T (20194 : 1,032,0007T) °

FTEEEASEMHRREENES >
HEf = 2RI 4 RIEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAE5ER R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE2020F3A31HLLEE (81 : Bim)

12. Financial risk management 12. £FRIESEE
Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the normal RESHELEEEFKBEDEXKIEEERR
course of the IFEC’s business. The IFEC's exposure to RAFHESEK - ARSI e Nt
foreign exchange risk is minimal as future transactions B EDCETIHME 0 EILEERIEE AL
and balances are mainly denominated in Hong Kong SNERR - BEETETAREEES
dollars. The IFEC has no interest bearing assets or B8 o 105 S B TR R B o L R R

liabilities. The IFEC manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner. BHEENEESRAKTIEESRTERES
REBEEEHER - RAEGRIAFNRE
B (S BTk Ea TR EEERN

B R BE K2 By 1T 78 00 B e 2 8 RO HE I o

The IFEC's credit risk is mainly attributable to cash at
bank. Management’s policy is that cash balances are

placed only with licensed banks in Hong Kong with high BERFRIRT - RENERAREERM
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating BRREASREMEENIREE © Bt
agencies. The maximum exposure to credit risk is ms > "KEGMAENEERREER

represented by the carrying amount of each financial

EWHE S TR RE S £
asset in the statement of financial position. In this regard, RERBERREMERR B AR BT

the IFEC's credit risk is limited. MEAEFENR > HEMHE LRI 2 & AT
MRS GEE - MR A RN

The IFEC's policy is to regularly monitor current and EEES TR o

expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it

maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity FrEE£m T AR EEIEM AR > B

requirements in the short and longer term. MELERTABERME  HifmE

) - . . BHEATEEELTREAER -
All financial instruments are carried at amortised cost and

the carrying amount is not materially different from their

fair values due to short-term in nature. 13. BAGSIRBREZERE
K2020F3 8310 » REENERE N
13. Parent and ultimate controlling party RIRERAADES - BEBER—FEAS
As at 31 March 2020, the parent and ultimate controlling AR WIRHR B IMRUPAREE o

party of the IFEC is the SFC, which is a statutory body in

Hong Kong and produces financial statements available 14. EEEIE

for public use.

REENETHEAEIREREIERA —
EEEMERE c ERERERAKRE RN
FENMBEZ R EHNES » UES
The funding of the IFEC is managed by its parent and BEeNaERERNDIE - EEe R~
ultimate controlling party, the SFC, which has agreed WAR A SRR B B AN ER o

to provide continual financial support and adequate

funds to the IFEC to meet its liabilities as and when they

fall due. The IFEC is not subject to any externally imposed

capital requirements.

14. Funding management
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info@ifec.org.hk
www.ifec.org.hk

The Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC) is the owner
of the copyright and other intellectual property rights in this
publication. This publication (in whole or in part) may not be
reproduced or distributed, or used for commercial purposes,
without the prior written permission of the IFEC.
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